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Terms of Reference

The Audit and Finance Committee has been established in
accordance with Part 7 of the Local Government Act 1995 to:

1. liase with the Auditor(s);
2. receive Quarterly Budget Review Reports;
3. recommend Donations as per Council’s Policy;

4. periodically consider alternatives for potential staff housing
options;

5. receive Quarterly Financial Reports on all of the Town of Port
Hedland’s Managed Community Facilities; and

6. review and suggest improvements to Risk Management within
the organisation.

Membership:

The membership of the committee be as follows:

o Mayor Kelly A Howlett;

. Councillor Arnold A Carter

. Councillor Michael B Dziombak
. Councillor Gloria A Jacob
Quorum:

The quorum for the Committee be a minimum of 50% of its
membership.

Delegation:

The Town of Port Hedland Council provides delegated authority to the
Audit and Finance Committee to meet annually with the Town’s
auditor(s) as required by Section 7.12A(2) of the Local Government
Act 1995.

Tenure:

Ongoing

Responsible Officer:

Director Corporate Services

(Adopted by Council at its Ordinary Meeting held 16 November 2011)
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OUR COMMITMENT

To enhance social, environmental and economic well-being through
leadership and worRing in partnership with the Community.

ITEM 1 OPENING OF MEETING ...c.coitiuiireneneriennerrennserrenssessenssessenssessenssessanssesssnssssssnsssssansssssnnsssssnsssssannnne 6
L. OPENING .uuuuuuuuuuururussssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnnnssnnne 6
ITEM 2 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE / APOLOGIES / APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE ........ccceeeeeeeeeeenennnnnnnns 6
2.1 ATTENDANCE . ..tttuueeeeetttttieeeeeeereattteaeeessresstaaaeeesssssstaasesesssssssannesesssssssnnnsessssssssnnesesessssssnnnesessssssnnnneeeesssnes 6
2.2 APOLOGIES ..oevtvtuuieeeeeeeiututieeeeeeseesttaaeeesssesstanteeesssssssnateaesssssssannseeessssssnannsessssssssnnesessssssssnnsesessssssnnnneeeesssees 6
2.3 APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE......ccettteieieieieieieieiererereretererereseteteseseresesesessseesreserersrersseserereressrererersreseserererererens 6
ITEM 3 PUBLIC TIIVIE ... ceeuiiiiteneitenneertenseetennsessennsessenssessenssessanssessanssesssnssesssnssesssnssesssnssessanssessnnssessnnsssenns 6
3.1 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME ettuuueeeeetettuuuiaeeeeresennneseeeesssssnnnasesessssssnsnnsesessssssnnssesessssssnnsesesessssssnnsesesessssssnnseseserees 6
3.2 PUBLICSTATEMENT TIME tiiiiiiieiiieieieieieieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeseseseseseseresesesereserereseserereresererererererererererererens 6
ITEM 4 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS WITHOUT NOTICE......cccccetteteeerencreencrencrencrnscsenscsnssssnscssssssnsennnens 7
ITEM5 DECLARATION BY MEMBERS TO HAVE GIVEN DUE CONSIDERATION TO ALL MATTERS
CONTAINED IN THE BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING........cc.cciteeiiimmnnicinnnnicinnnnicnsnnsscnennnes 7
ITEM 6 REPORTS OF OFFICERS .....cccittteiiitmniiienneniennesienssesisnssssssnssssssnssesssnssssssnssssssnssssssnssssssnssssssnssssanne 8
6.1 CORPORATE SERVICES ...ceeieieieieieieieieieteeeieeeteeeeeeereseeesesesesesetetetesereseresetesereeerererererereseterererererererererererererererenens 8
6.1.1  APPOINTMENT Of AUGILON ..ottt e e e ettt e et e e et a e e et aeeetsaaeetsasaeanssesennses 8
ITEM 7 LATE ITEMS AS PERMITTED BY CHAIRPERSON/COUNCIL .....cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesessesssssssssssssees 89
ITEM 8 CONFIDENTIAL ITEIMIS ....ceuiiiieieiiiiennieitensietiensiessanssesssnsesssnssessanssssssnssssssnssssssnssssssnsssssnnsssssnnsssssnne 89
ITEM 9 CLOSURE........iteeeiiiieeniciienneitennieitansietssnsiesssnsiessansssssanssssssnsssssanssssssnssssssnssssssnsssssnnsssssnnsssssnnssssanne 89
9.1 DATE OF NEXT IMIEETING uuuuueeeiieiiutuieeeeeeeeetsutieseeesessssnaesesesessssnnaesessssssssnsesessssssssnesesssssssssneseessssssnnnnesesssens 89
.2 CLOSURE .. iteetttiieeeeeeeettieeeeeeeeetabaeseeeseeabaa e seeesesabaaaasesesessbaaassesssessbannseeesssssanannsesesssstsnnneseesssssrnnnneeeeesees 89
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ITEM 1

11

ITEM 2

2.1

2.2

2.3

ITEM 3
3:35pm

3.1

3:35pm

3:35pm

3.2

3:35pm

OPENING OF MEETING

Opening

The Chairperson declared the Special Meeting of the Audit and
Finance Committee open at 3:35pm and acknowledged the traditional

owners, the Kariyarra people.

RECORD OF ATTENDANCE / APOLOGIES / APPROVED LEAVE
OF ABSENCE

Attendance

Committee:

Councillor Arnold A Carter (Chairperson)
Councillor Michael B Dziombak (Deputy Chairperson)
Councillor Gloria A Jacob

Ms Natalie Octoman Director Corporate Services

Mr Eber Butron Director Planning and Development
Services

Ms Josephine Bianchi Governance Coordinator/ Minute
Taker

Apologies

Mayor Kelly A Howlett
Approved Leave of Absence

Nil

PUBLIC TIME

Chairperson opened Public Question Time.
Public Question Time

Nil.

Chairperson closed Public Question Time.
Chairperson opened Public Statement Time.
Public Statement Time

Nil.

Chairperson closed Public Statement Time.

PAGE 6



MINUTES: SPECIAL AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 23 MAY 2012

ITEM 4 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS WITHOUT NOTICE
Nil.
ITEM5 DECLARATION BY MEMBERS TO HAVE GIVEN DUE

CONSIDERATION TO ALL MATTERS CONTAINED IN THE
BUSINESS PAPER PRESENTED BEFORE THE MEETING

Cr A A Carter Cr M B Dziombak
Cr G A Jacob
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ITEM 6

6.1

6.1.1

REPORTS OF OFFICERS

Corporate Services

Appointment of Auditor

Officer Jodie McMahon
Manager Financial
Services

Date of Report 15 May 2012

Disclosure of Interest by Officer Nil

Summary

For the Audit and Finance Committee to consider the Audit quotes
received and recommend to Council the appointment of an Auditor for
a term of 3 years.

Background

In accordance with section 7.2 of the Local Government Act 1995, the
accounts and annual financial report of a local government for each
financial year are required to be audited by an auditor appointed by
the local government.

At Council’s Ordinary Meeting held on the 11 May 2011 Council
requested the Town to undertake a tender process to appoint an
Auditor for a 3 year period from 2011/12 to 2013/14.

“201011/377 Audit and Finance Committee Recommendation /
Council Decision

Moved: Cr A A Carter Seconded: Cr M Dziombak
That Council:

1. Notes the recommendations from the Audit and Finance
Committee at its meeting held on 11 May 2011; and

2. Approves the appointment of UHY Haines Norton as the
Town of Port Hedland’s Auditors for the 2010/11 financial
year; and

3. Requests the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a tender
process to appoint an Auditor for a 3 year period from
2011/12 to 2013/14.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 7/0
REASON: Council believes the Chief Executive Officer should

undertake a tender process to appoint an Auditor for a 3 year
period from 2011/2012 to 2013/14.
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At the Ordinary Council Meeting held on the 14 March Council revoked
the above Council decision and requested that the Chief Executive
Officer undertake a quoting process utilising the WALGA preferred
supplier panel.

201112/374 Council Decision
Moved: Cr A A Carter Seconded: Cr D W Hooper

That Council agrees to consider Officer's Recommendations 1 to
3 of Agenda Item 11.4.1.2 ‘Process to Appoint the Town’s
Auditor’ together.

Officer's Recommendation 1

That Council notes the recommendations from the Audit and
Finance Committee at its meeting held on 22 February 2012.

RECOMMENDATIONS 1-3 CARRIED TOGETHER BY
SIMPLE MAJORITY 7/0

Officer's Recommendation 2

That Council revokes point 3 of Council Decision 201011/377
Audit and Finance Committee Recommendation/Council
Decision from 11 May 2011 recorded on page 104 of those
minutes:

‘Request the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a tender
process to appoint an Auditor for 3 year period from 2011/12 to
2013/14”

RECOMMENDATIONS 1-3 CARRIED TOGETHER BY
ABSOLUTE MAJORITY 7/0

Officer's Recommendation 3
That Council:

1. Request the Chief Executive Officer to undertake a quoting
process utilising the WALGA preferred supplier panel to
appoint an Auditor for a period of 3 years from 2011/12 to
2013/14.

2. Note that after the quotes are received, a further report will
be provided from the Audit and Finance Committee to
Council to recommend appointment of the preferred
company.

RECOMMENDATIONS 1-3 CARRIED TOGETHER BY
SIMPLE MAJORITY 7/0
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Officers have sought quotations from all Audit Companies on the
WALGA preferred panel as recommended by Council. Those who
responded are being presented to Council for consideration.
Consultation

o Western Australian Local Government Association
Statutory Implications
Local Government Act 1995
Division 2 — Appointment of auditors
7.2. Audit
The accounts and annual financial report of a local government
for each financial year are required to be audited by an auditor
appointed by the local government.
7.3. Appointment of auditors
(1) A local government is to, from time to time whenever such an
appointment is necessary or expedient, appoint* a person, on the
recommendation of the audit committee, to be its auditor.
* Absolute majority required.
(2) The local government may appoint one or more persons as its
auditor.
(3) The local government’s auditor is to be a person who is —
(@) aregistered company auditor; or
(b) an approved auditor.
[Section 7.3 amended by No. 49 of 2004 s. 6.]
7.6. Term of office of auditor
(1)  The appointment of a local government’s auditor is to have effect
in respect of the audit of the accounts and annual financial report
of the local government for a term of not more than 5 financial
years, but an auditor is eligible for re-appointment.
Policy Implications
Nil
Strategic Planning Implications

Nil
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Budget Implications

If Council is to adopt the recommendations of the officer for the audit
services for a 3 year period, Council will need to commit the following
budgets:

Costs Grant Thornton
Audit 2011/12
Annual Audit
Services $ 20,000.00
Disbursements cost

Audit 2012/13
Annual Audit
Services $ 21,500.00
Disbursements cost

Audit 2013/14
Annual Audit
Services $ 23,500.00
Disbursements cost

Financial
Management
Review
Financial
Management
Review $ 8,000.00
Disbursements cost

These amounts will be sourced through the annual budget process
with the Financial Management Review being sourced through the
2012/13 budget.

Officer’'s Comment

Invitations were sent to all Audit Companies on the WALGA preferred
panel seeking quotation of audit services for the Town over a 3 year
period commencing for the financial year ending 30 June 2012. Audit
Companies were also requested to quote for to provision of
completing the Town Financial Management Review as per the Local
Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1996 for the Town by June 2012.

Of the 7 companies on the WALGA preferred supplier panel 3
companies responded. Responses were received from:

° UHY Haines Norton;
° AMD Charted Accountants; and
° Grant Thornton.

The table below indicates pricing and hours appointed for the term of
the 3 years.
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Costs

AMD Chartered
Accountants

Grant Thornton

UHY Haines
Norton

Audit 2011/12

Annual Audit
Services

$ 18,800.00

$

20,000.00

$ 25,000.00

Disbursements

cost

cost

cost

Hours Allocated

116.00

160.00

131.00

Audit 2012/13

Annual Audit
Services

$ 18,880.00

21,500.00

$ 26,000.00

Disbursements

cost

cost

cost

Hours Allocated

116.00

160.00

131.00

Audit 2013/14

Annual Audit
Services

$ 19,600.00

23,500.00

$ 27,000.00

Disbursements

cost

cost

cost

Hours Allocated

116.00

160.00

131.00

Financial
Management
Review

Financial
Management
Review

$ 7,800.00

8,000.00

$ 8,000.00

Disbursements

costs

cost

cost

Hours Allocated

38.00

60.00

35.00

AMD Chartered Accountants

AMD Chartered Accountants are one of the South West's largest
accounting and business services.

AMD Chartered Accountants currently complete audit services for
local governments such as City of Busselton, Shire of Harvey and
Shire of Pingelly.

AMD Chartered Accountants are able to provide assistance or advice
in relation to Accounting Standards and the preparation of the Annual
Report. They will communication significant developments and
changes where required in regards to developments for changes to
accounting and legislative requirements that impact the financial
systems, procedures and reports of the Town.

Other services offered by AMD Chartered Accountants are:

Audit and assurance;

Business development services;

Company secretarial services;

Financial feasibility studies and project analysis;
Financial management systems;

Human resource planning and assistance;
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Industry restructure and industry development support;

IT and account systems support;

Marketing planning and practical assistance;

Proactive accounting;

Specialist taxation, individual and small business taxation;
Strategic business planning; and

o Superannuation fund administration.

The hourly rate for services required outside the audit services quoted

are:
Hourly
Rate
Partner $340
Associate $300
Supervisor $180
Senior $160
Auditor $130
Assistant Auditor | $120
Secretary $80

Grant Thornton

Grant Thornton are one of the oldest established firms of accountants
in Western Australia and is one of the largest in Australia and the fifth
largest internationally.

Grant Thornton currently complete audit services for Local
Governments such as City of Perth, City of Wanneroo, Western
Australian local Government Association (WALGA), City of Nedlands
and the Shire of Roebourne.

Grant Thornton has advised that they would comply with the Town’s
audit timetable. They have also noted that their senior staff are
available at any time of the year to discuss matters of concern,
attracting no additional charges.

Other services offered by Grant Thornton are:

Probity Audits;

Taxation and Business Services — GDT and FBT;
Business Recovery and Insolvency Services;
Property Services — Feasibility Studies;
Information Systems Reviews;

Management Reviews;

Preparation of Business plans; and

Risk Management Reviews.

Their hourly rate for services required outside of the audit services
quoted are:
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Hourly Rate
Partner $300
Manager $200
In Charge | $160
Staff $100

UHY Haines Norton

UHY Haines Norton have been the Town’s auditors for the last 10
years. They have been providing audit and consultant services to local
governments since 1993. They are the largest auditor of local
governments within Western Australia.

UHY Haines Norton currently complete audit services for local
governments such as Town of Claremont, City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder,
City of Subiaco and City of Rockingham.

UHY are currently WALGA'’s contract provider for tax services. They
conduct annual workshops for local governments within Western
Australia covering Annual Financial Reports, Budgets, accounting
standards, infrastructure assets, cash flow statements, ratio analysis,
sustainability and various other accounting issues. These services
are available to all local governments across Western Australia
through the Western Australian Local Government Association.

Other services offered by UHY Haines Norton are:

External and Internal Audits;

Accounting Advice and Assistance;

IT Solutions;

Income Tax Preparation and Planning Advice;
Tax Consulting — Business Advice;

GST and FBT advice;

Systems Review and Implementation;
Strategic Planning;

Budgeting Planning;

Succession Planning;

Budgeting and Cash Flow Analysis;
Management Consulting; and

Financial Management and Organisational Planning.

Their hourly rate for services outside the audit services quoted are:

Hourly Rate
Partner $440-$550
Manager $275
Senior $200
Intermediate | $160
Graduate $120
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Officers are recommending that the Audit and Finance Committee
accept the quotation received from Grant Thornton. Officers believe
that while they are not the lowest quotation received on a lump sum
basis, on an average hourly basis they are the lowest.

Hourly

Rate
AMD Chartered Accountants $162
Grant Thornton $125
UHY Haines Norton $190

Grant Thornton have allocated more hours to the provision of audit
services to the Town and officers feel that these hours allocated are
more reflective of the hours required to carry out the audit services
and financial management review for the Town of Port Hedland.

Should the Town also require additional services outside of the
quotation received Grant Thornton’s hourly rate for these services are
the lowest of the quotations received.

While AMD Charted Accountants are the lowest quotation received,
Officers believe that Grant Thornton have more extensive knowledge
and understanding of local government legislation appropriate to the
Town of Port Hedland as they are currently providing external audit
services to large metropolitan and regional councils whilst also being a
lower quotation received than UHY Haines Norton. Local
Governments that Grant Thornton are currently providing audit
services include: the City of Perth, City of Stirling, City of Albany, Shire
of Roebourne and the City of Joondalup.

Attachments

1. AMD Chartered Accountants Quotation;
2.  Grant Thornton Quotation; and
3.  UHY Haines Norton Quotation.

AFC201112/017 Officer’'s Recommendation/Audit and Finance
Committee Decision

Moved: Cr M Dziombak Seconded: Cr G A Jacob
That the Audit and Finance Committee recommend to Council
that it appoints Grant Thornton as the Town’s auditors for a 3

year term commencing from financial year ending 30 June 2012.

CARRIED 3/0
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ATTACHMENT 1 TOITEM 7.1.1

AMD

¢

FRITHERS

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Clhan M Anderson ros, je

Stuart Fricka: craaaco

Stephan FJ Denar oa Tim: Pariridos roa
Shaun G O'Callagnan ca
Paler banoias o
Mot of ot Ly

9 May 2012 e
Mars Cavalio ca Shane Kaurin cms
Stevan Cluning ¢a

Mr 1. Hill

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Town of Port Hedland

PO Box 41

PORT HEDLAND WA 6721

Dar lan

EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
REQUEST FOR QUOTE

We are pleased to submit our guotation to provide Audit Services to the Town of Por
Hedland for a 3 year term commencing 1 July 2011,

AMD AUDIT & ASSURANCE SERVICES

Since 1982, AMD Chartered Accountants has grown to be one of the largest WA chartered
accounting firm cutside the Perth metropolitan area with offices in Bunbury, Mandurah and
Geraldton, and a team of over G0 people. The AMD Audit and Assurance Division
comprises 10 full time staff and we have a wide range of audit clients including Local
Government Councils, large proprietary companies, co-operatives, government trading
enterprises and community arganisations.

We are currently the auditors for ten Local Government Councils, and in addition to
completing statutory audits we are often requested to provide other additional assistance
and advice specific to Lecal Government requirements.

We are the only regional based firm within Western Australian recognised as Local
Government specialists, and as such we are listed as Western Australia Local Government
Association "Prefemred Suppliers” in respect to the provision of both internal and external
audit services.

Our audit team is led by an experienced audit Pariner, Tim Partridge and audit Associate,
Maria Cavallo. Our enclosed Audit Services Proposal includes additional information on
AMD Chartered Accountants and Audit and Assurance Team members who would be
responsible for this engagement.

We are fortunate to have a variely of specialists within our firm, accordingly should
assistance be required on other areas we would be pleased to provide support

Wikl Wtiad by 8 schame appeoves under Sclessiona’ Sandars Legisition

INTERMATISH AL

Buinbury, Wa E231
Telephore: {38) 9780 7555
Facsimie: (0) 9721 F382

Marudurah Bard, W 5210
Talepnore: (O8] B35 GAED
Facsimie: |[06) 9535 BR40

Email: ama@amdonine. com.au

g Tnadepestalent Miemiber of Bunbury Office Mandurah Office Geraldton Office
k' Chartered B K R Linit 1. 28-30 Walinghon Stroat. 197 Mancurah Terace, 154 Durtachar Streel,
¥ Accountants P Bt 1308, PO B £250, PO B 288,

Gerakiton, Wi B30
Telaphone: () 9954 5338
Facsimila: ) 9964 5833

WO, IO o e, . U
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BEMEFITS IN APPOINTING AMD CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
We believe there are significant benefits in appeinting AMD as your auditors, including

¥ The extensive Local Govemment experience of Tim Partridge and Maria Cavalle, who
are both available to be appointed as Council's nominated auditor. Both Maria and Tim
are Chartered Accountants and Registered Company Auditors with over 27 years of
Local Government audit expenence.

¥ Qur Audit and Assurance team comprises ten full time professionals and we draw on
experise from within AMD's team of 60 staff in completing audit engagements, as and
when required. As a result we confirm we have the ability to rotate audit staff during the
contract.

¥ Our significant experience in conducting audits for Local Government Councils, similar to
the Town of Port Hedland.

# Whilst our approach is at all times professional and independent, it is also co-cperative
and communicative so that we develop excellent working relationships with your
accounting team, thus promoting efficiency and transfer of accounting knowledge

¥ The considerable experience of our nominated auditors and audit team in advising on
matters relating to financial management regulations and accounting standards.

¥ The absence of risk in choosing a stable firm with proven record of praviding high quality
audit service since 1982 to Local Government Councils within Western Australia.

v

We are able to provide high quality taxation and other consulting services, again with the
advantage of local government experience and being able to vist your offices guickly
and cost effectively.

DISBURSEMENTS

Please not that our fee quote contained within our attached proposal includes a significant
level of disbursements relating to fravel (flights) to and from Port Hedland, and
accommodation.

Disbursements have been estimated based on actual quotes obtained from hotels, caravan
parks and airlines on 8" May 2012

We are concerned that the level of disbursements may appear high given we oblained
quotes based on “current pricing”, with limited advanced notice.

We are aware however from our experience in completing other regional based audits
including Kalgoorlie, Newman and Geraldton that cheaper rates can usually be obiained
where bookings are made 3 to 4 months in advance.

It is our usual pelicy to make advanced bookings in order to keep disbursements to a
minimum.

We would therefore expect in a year where we would have some months of advanced notice
to plan our trips, cheaper rates may be available.

Flease note that we would also seek to minimise the number of nights accommodation
required, by booking early moming arrival flights to Port Hedland and late afterncon
departure flights.
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CONCLUSION

AMD has a history of providing excellent service to Local Government Councils, at
reasonable fees. \We are committed to the continuing development of our feam and
capabilities,

Previously, many Councils have chosen an auditor based on price alone. However we
believe there is a growing awareness in Local Government as to the importance of a high
quality audit, to assist in the proper financial management and financial reporting which we
understand the Town of Port Hedland is seeking.

Through demonstrated capabilities, experience and achievernents, we belisve that AMD is
well aligned to provide audit services to the Town of Port Hedland.

We would be very pleased to act as auditors of the Town of Port Hedland and would
appreciate the opportunity to provide a constructive and valuable contribution to the Shire's
financial management,

Flease do not hesitate to contact Maria Cavallo or myself should there be any areas of this
proposal that you wish to discuss further. We would be pleased to hold a phone conferance
with the Audit Committee o discuss our proposal if required

Yours sincerely
AMD Chartered Accountants

?_:L _

TIM PARTRIDGE FCA
Fartner

Enc.
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax (08) 9721 8982
www amdonline. com.au

Suite 1, 28 Wellingten Street,
PO Box 1306
Bunbury WA 6230
4 Phone (0B) 9780 7585

Audit Services
2011/12 to 2013/14

Provision of Audit Services

Request for Quote — Contract
Number 0411-11

Independent Member of

BKR v

INTERNATIORNAL WALGA

May 2012
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4> AMD

Audit Contract Requirements D

In accordance with the requirements of the Town of Port Hedland request for audit services
quotation, we provide the following

1. Parties to the Contract
(a) Principal Towen of Part Hedland
(b} Contractor Tim Partridge

AMD Chartered Accountants
Registered Company Auditor Number; 225698

Maria Cavallo
AMD Chartered Accountants
Registered Company Auditor Number: 308235

2. Obijectives of Audit

The objectives of the audit are as outlined within the request for quotation specifications and are
consistent with the objectives of other Local Government audits we conduct, We confirm we are
able to meet the audit objectives as stated.

In accordance with the reguest for quote specifications, we will:

(&) provide an independent audit opinion of the accounts and annual financial reports of the
Town of Port Hedland for each financial year covered by the term of the audit
appointment in accordance with the Local Government Act and Regulations; and

(b) undertake a review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of financial managerment
systems in accordance with Section 6.10 of the Local Government Act 1985 and Section
5(1) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations during June 2012,

The goal of AMD Audit and Assurance Services is not only to carry out cost efficient audits to
provide an opinion on the annual financial report but also to provide clients with constructive and
independent advice on systems and procedures and on the way in which this information is
reported.

3. Scope of Audit

Our audit will be completed based on the requirements of Part 7 — Division 3 of the Local
Government Act 1985 and the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996, We confirm that
audits completed by us are camied out in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and
Auditing Guidance Statements.

We understand that Council wish to appoint auditors for a 3 year period, commencing 1 July
2011 through to 30 June 2014
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{> AMD

Awn

Audit Contract Requirements
4. Audit Methodoloay

During the year we will communicate with you to ensure that we have a mutual satisfactory
program for completing the annual audit. Please refer below for further details.

Entrance Imterview

Before we commence the audit, the audit senior would meet the Director or Corporate Senvices
and [/ or Manager of Finance to ensure there is a mutual understanding of the audit
requirements and approach. This interview is also ulilised to discuss any areas of concem or
ISSUES.

If required, we will also be available to held a phone conference with the Chief Executive Officer
and / or Audit Committea prior to commencement of the audit to discuss any areas of concemns
or issues.

Planning and Interim Audit

Prior to the end of each financial year, we will perform an awdit planning visit.  This visit would
usually be completed in April or May each year at a mutually convenient time, and would take
place at Council's offices.

The purpose of the planning visit is to complete our audit planning in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards including assessing audit risk areas. During this visit we will also assess
compliance with the financial management sections within the Local Government Act and
Financial Management Regulations.

Onece we have obtained an understanding of risks, key systems and intemnal controls are
reviewed and documented including:
a) Revenue:
+ Rates revenue;
Government grants,
User pays revenus;
Profit on sale of non-current assets;
Other income;

b) Expenditure:

Salary and wage costs;
Depreciation;

Materials and contract expenditure;
Loss on sale of non-current assets;
Insurances;

Bad debts;

Other expenditure;
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Audit Contract Requirements 4 AMD
4. Audit Methodology {continued)

c) Current Assats:
+ Bank and short term investments;
+ Receivables and prepayments:;
+  |Inventory,

d) MNon-Current Assets:
+ Property, plant, furniture and eguipment;
# Infrastructure and depreciation;
s Other receivables,

€} Liabilities (Current and non-current):
= Creditors and accruals,
+ Loan borrowings including new loans raised;
+ Provision for annual and long service leave entitiements,

fi Reserve Funds

g)  Contingent Liabilities;

h) Capital Commitments;

i} Accounting Policies and Motes to the Financial Statemeants;
it Statement of Cash Flows; and

K) The financial ratios required by the Local Government (Financial Managemenf)
Regulations 1996

Tests of internal controls are then designed and performed to ensure key controls relating to the
above specific matters to be audited are operating effectively.

Upon completion of this interim audit visit, an Interim Management Letter will be prepared after
discussion with your accounting team should there be significant issues to raise. This report will
outline any weaknesses or areas of concern identified during the review and testing phase, with
detailed recommendations provided to rectify issues identified. Recommendations raised are in
accordance with Local Government best practice.

20 June Information Checklist
AMD's Local Government Year End Information Checklist will be provided to and discussed with
the accounting team at the time of the interim audit.

The checklist details key summaries and reconciliations to be prepared as at 30 June, which we
will reguire to complete our year end audit,

The completed checklist forms the basis of a year end file, provided to us at commencement of

our final audit, {containing copies of reconciliations and summaries etc). The content of our audit
checklist is based on matters forming the Critical Audit Areas as outlined above.

Page & of 21

PAGE 23



MINUTES: SPECIAL AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 23 MAY 2012

Audit Contract Requirements ﬂ AMD

4, Audit Methodology (continued)

This process ensures our clients are aware of what we need prior to us commencing our final
audit visit by providing a clear understanding of what we required. We also consider this
process assists in the efficiency of the audit process and will ensure all necessary
documentation has been prepared prior to our visit,

Final Audit

The final audit visit after the end of the financial year includes all procedures necessary to audit
the financial statements (including accounting policy notes, statement of cash flows, financial
ratios etc) in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, Auditing Guidance Statements,
Local Government Act, Local Government Regulations and other legislative reguirements.

These audit procedures would be completed at Council's offices at a mutually convenient time
as agreed with the accounting team (within 30 days of being advised the accounts and annual
financial report are available for audit).

On completion of our final visit, a Management Report to the Town President and CEOQ is
prepared. This letter details any recommendations regarding the improvement of internal
controls, together with commentary regarding the action outcomes of the intedm management
report.

An audit report will also be provided by us on completion of our audit, as required by Section 7.9
of the Local Government Act 1995 within the required legislative time frame.

Please note that our audit methodology and approach relating te Local Government audits has
been independently assessed and confirmed to be appropriate.

Exit Interview

The audit senior will be onsite to meet and discuss any matters arising from the audit with the
Director or Corporate Services and / or Manager of Finance and/or Chief Executive Officer on
completion of the field work.

Audit Committee and Annual General Meeting of Ratepayers

Council's nominated auditor is available to attend Audit Committee meetings or the Annual
General Mesting of Ratepayers at any time during the contract term at an additional fee, Given
time associated with travel to and from Port Hedland a fee of 51,800 plus out of pocket
expenses will be charged for Audit Partner attendance at these meetings. A reduced fee would
be charged if an Audit Senior or Manager attended in place of the Audit Partner,

Should a phone conference with the Audit Committee be sufficient, no additional fee will be
charged.
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Audit Contract Requirements

4. Audit Methodology {continued)

Accounting Standards / Annual Report Advice
Please note that at our interim and final audit visits we are able to provide assistance or advice
in relation to Accounting Standards and the preparation of the Annual Repart,

We will also make ourselves available on request to provide advice on any development and
changes to accounting standard and legislative requirements that impact the financial systems,
procedures and reports of the Town. We will communicate significant developments and
changes in writing where required.

Financial Management Systems Review

We understand that pursuant to Regulation 5(2) of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations, a review of the appropriateness and effectiveness of financial
management systems will be required every four years.

Based on the Request for Quote specifications, this review will be completed during the 30 June
2012 year,

Specific Project Audits/Acquittals

We understand that we may be requested to provide specific audit acquittals on an annual basis
including the annual Reads to Recovery related acquittals and any other acquittals required due
to additional grant funding being received.

Acquittals will be charged at normal professional hourly rates for that level of work as stated in
the Fee Schedule table below or a quoted fee (where requested)
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Audit Contract Requirements

4

AMD

CEEITEEETAICA LR S

4. Audit Methodology (continued)

Schedule of Rates - Other Services

Apart from the statutory audits there may be other audits or financial services thal are required
from time to time such as audit liaison, assistance in reclifying problems in annual report,
feedback, support and direction and assessment of accounting procedures, internal contrals,
rigk and performance assessments of the efficiency and effectiveness of operations as agreed
with the Manager of Finance, Director of Corporate Services, Chief Executive Officer or Audit
Committes and review compliance with the statutory requirements of the ATO.

Where the work is significant or outside the normal scope of the audit, a charge above the audit
fee at an hourly rate stated in the Fee Schedule below is usually agreed in advance.

The following schedule of rates is cumrent as of the date of this quotation, and provides an
indication as to costs incurred to complete additional assignments outside of the statutory audit

Sarvice Description Description | Tendar Prica |  GST | Frike
N Classification of Linit Tanderad Component Tenderad
Parsonnai {inc G5T)
(@) | Awdit Partner Tim Partridge C.A. |Per hour 3340 F34 374
1b) | Audit Associate Marie Cavale | pernour | 300 $30 | a0
e} | Awudit Supervisor Rebacea Broad | Per hour $180 518 5158
1(d) | Audit Senior Alisha Kellow | Per hour $160 516 $175
1(e) | Audit Senior Renir Van Tander | Per hour $160 316 $178
1) | Auditer Waricus Per hour $130 513 $143
1{g) | Assistant Auditor \farious Per hour $120 312 $132
Administrative
1(hy | Secretary ertinrinten Per hour 80 58 $88
2 Report producticn cost Per unit Ml SNl SNl
Travel & .
3 accommodation Per Wisit §At Cost $AL Cost $At Cost
Phone conference with | |
4 Audit Committas i Annum $Included i Fincluded Sincluded

Our quoted costs above are exclusive of all out of pocket disbursements, including
flights from Perth, car hire and accommodation which will be charged at actual cost.
Flease note, however the attached fee schedule provides an estimate of disbursements
based on quotes received dated 7 May 2012.

Charge out rates cutlined above are subject to annual review and adjustment.
Please note, we would expect most one off engagement (including grant acquittals, verification
of capital expenditure etc) to be completed primarily by an Assistant Auditor or Auditer,

The nominated auditors, who are both Registered Company Auditors and Chartered
Accountants are available o provide consultation services (e.g. advice in relation to changes
to accounting policies, adoption of new Accounting Standards etc), as requested
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AT RIS

Performance and Experience

§.  Demonstrated Experience

Nominated Auditor
The nominated auditors for this engagement are Tim Partridge, Registered Company Auditor
MNo 225688 and Maria Cavallo, Registered Company Auditor Number 308235,

We have nominated two Registered Company Auditors which allows the option of rotating the
nominated auditor during the term of engagement.

Your Audit Team

The audit team will be led by Tim Partridge and Maria Cavalle. Tim and Maria are both
Chartered Accountants and Registered Company Auditors, with exiensive experence in
auditing Local Governments. Tim and Maria have a total of 27 years combined experience in
auditing Local Government Councils within Western Australia.

Our Audit and Assurance team comprises ten full time professionals and we draw on expertise
from within AMD's team of &0 staff in completing audit engagements, as and when reguired, As
a result we confirm we have the ability to rotate audit staff during the contract.

The nominated auditor will subsequently be available to hold a phone conference with the Audit
committee throughout the year at no additional cost.

Please refer to the attached Team Profile (Appendix 4) for further information on the audit
seniors within the AMD Audit and Assurance Team we propose could be involved on this
engagement.

Experience as Auditor in Local Government
We are currently the auditors for ten Local Government Councils in the South West region and
have been auditers for most of these Councils for many years,

As such, we are one of the leading firms of Local Government auditors in Western Australia,

We are the only regional based firm within Western Australian recagnised as Local Governmant
specialists, and as such we are listed as Western Australia Local Government Association
“Preferred Suppliers” in respect to the provision of both internal and external audit services to
Local Government,

Our audit knowledge of Local Government accounting is equal to any available in Western
Australia; we have conducted many seminars and have been engaged on special services by
Local Governments for whom we do not act as auditors.

The goal of the AMD Audit & Assurance team is not only to carry out cost efficient audits but
also to provide clients with constructive and independent advice on day-to-day operations. A
standard feature of the AMD service is to review the effectiveness of accounting systems and
procedures, and provide recommendations for improvement. AMD provide a value-added
service as a result of the understanding and knowledge cbtained from diverse experience with
our clientele.

Please refer to our Team Profile, which is attached, for further detail on our experience and
capabilities. Please refer to our referees listed within Appendix 2 who we welcome you content
in respect to our demonstrated capabilities and levels of service provided.
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Performance and Experience 4 AMD
5. Demonstrated Experience (continued)

Other Services Previously Provided to Local Governments

We often perform other services for our Local Government clients including compliance with
Accounting Standards, compliance reviews acquittal audits. We would be pleased to provide
these additional services on an ad-hoc basis as requested.

Fees for these services would be at normal professional rates and quotations can be provided
prior to commencing the work,

6. uality Control

We advise AMD have quality control systems in place which are documented within our Quality
Confrol Guide.

The Accounting Professional and Ethical Statemert "APES 110 - Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants”, and "AFES 320 - Quality Control for Firms® as issued by the
Accounting Prefessional and Ethical Standards Board (APESE).

We confirm that AMD are fully compliant with these quality contral standards.

As a Chartered Accounting firm undertaking audit services we are subject to Quality Reviews
undertaken by the Institute of Chartered Accountants on a regular basis, The most recent
review included the selection of one of our Local Government Council audit work papers. The
review encompasses a full assessment of our audit methodology, approach and compliance
with Australian Auditing Standards, We are pleased to note there were no adverse findings in
respect to our audit methodelegy, appreach and reporting on a completion of this review,

Page 10 of 21

PAGE 28



MINUTES: SPECIAL AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 23 MAY 2012

Appendix 1 -Organisation Structure 4 fm%.M,Q
Performance and Experience | Organisational Structure
Ch

AMD is one of the South West's largest accounting and business services firm, delivering a
broad range of services that help clients to grow and succeed. AMD has serviced the region
since 1982, and have grown to a team of 60 staff in 3 offices. The AMD service range has been
built around the needs of progressive businesses and includes:

« Audit and assurance;

+ Business development services;

+« Company secretarial services;

+ Financial feasibility studies and project analysis;

* Financial management systems;

«  Human resource planning and assistance;

+ Industry restructure and industry development support;

« T and accounting systems support;

+ Marketing planning and practical assistance;

+  Proaclive accounting;

« Specialist taxation, individual and small business taxation;

« Strategic business planning; and

«  Superannuation fund administration.

The AMD Service Range

The AMD way is to think outside of the box and offer services to support the whole of your
business. We aim to help you to succeed and prosper.

General Taxation and Accounting

Taxation and accounting services are managed for a broad cross section of \West
Australian business and personal requirements. AMD also has a specialist taxation unit
for complex matters and structural planning.

Strategic Business Planning & Development Support

Targeted activities from direction setting workshaps through to comprehensive strategic
business planning or family business succession planning. Clients may also qualify for
state government funding foward planning services.

Audit & Assurance Services

We perform audits for and give specialised reports and advice to a wide range of clients
including large private companies, local government, public companies, self managed
superannuation funds, charties and schoaols.
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Appendix 1 -Organisation Structure 4 AMD
Performance and Experience | Organisational Structure {continued)

Financial Feasibility & Project Analysis

Business feasibility studies and financial modelling can mean the difference between
guesswork and confident decision making! Our team has worked with business owners
as well as third parties such as banking or legal teams.

Marketing Planning & Assistance

Practical and flexible marketing support including marketing planning, pesitioning and
creative brief, market feasibility, research and sales estimation, advertising and
promaotions review, budgeting and evaluation, copywriting and presentations.

Superannuation Fund Administration and Financial Planning

A complete administration service for Self Managed Superannuation Funds is available.
Our clients include small family funds through to corporate funds and retirees. Advice is
offered on planning for retirement, estate structure, pension funds and investment.

Bookkeeping & Accounting Systems Support

The quality, efficiency and application of financial information management is an
essential consideration for any business. Our team can assist with computerised
accounting system set up and bookkeeping training.

Specialist Taxation Advice

AMD has a specialist tax unit able to assist with a range of complex tax matters including
Income Tax, GST, Fringe Benefits Tax, Capital Gains Tax, taxation relating to family law
matters and general taxation litigation support.

Eervice Profile — Audit & Assurance Services

AMD Audit & Assurance Services provide independent and objective senvices to ensure the
reliability of financial information, transactions and processes. In addition to performing cost-
effective audits, we provide clients with constructive independent advice on the day to day running
of their businesses. We adapt a communicative, hands-on approach in assisting clients and, being
based in Bunbury, we are available to visit clients throughout the South West whenever required,

Statutory Audits

As Registered Company Auditors we are responsible for the audit and preparation of
financial statements in accordance with relevant legislative requirements. Statutory audits
represent the core of our activities, and we adopt a practical approach in recommending
system improvements.

Internal Procedures & Controls Review

We perform financial system reviews fo ensure procedures in place are appropriate for the
type and size of the business, and are operating effectively. Our report outlines areas of
concern and recommendatiens for improverment.  We regularly perform this service for
clients whao do not require a full audit or businesses that have experienced rapid growth.
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Appendix 1 -Organisation Structure ﬂ AMQ

Performance and i / Organisational Structure (contin

Forensic & Investigative Accounting

We provide discreet, pro-active assistance relating to the investigation of unusual
ansactions or balances, in addition to reviews designed to prevent and detect fraud.

Management Assurance Services

Qur internal audit and risk management reviews can be tailored to include financial and non-
financial aspects critical to client operations. On complefion of these reviews, we report to
management on an exception basis, outining areas of concern and remedial action
required.

Corporate Governance

It is critical that Boards and governing bodies find the right balance between compliance,
best practice and performance. Our advice in this area is practical and relevant, and
tailored to the nature of the organisation.

Transaction Service

We can independently review one-off transactions outside the ordinary course of business,
including related technical advice, Transactions typically include due diligence reviews, the
issue or buyback of shares, revaluation of nen-current assets and related party transactions.
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Appendix 1 —Organisation Structure 4 AMD

BKR

AMD are a member firm of BKR International, a leading association of independent
accounting and business advisory firms. BKR represent the expertise of more than 135 firms in
300 offices in over 70 countries around the world,

BKR firms offer clients the best of both worlds: personalised local service and global expertise
and connections.

BKR offers members the best of both worlds: access to assistance and resources available in
“Big 4" firms, while maintaining your independent management and entreprenaurial vision.

As a worldwide association of independent accounting, taxation and business advisors, BKR
International brings together firms that offer you up-to-date global expertise,

Our member firms are large enough to offer a full range of independent and objective advisory
services, but small enough to attend to your specific needs and offer the personalised attention

yOou require,

‘You can depend on BKR member firms for creative and practical services to clients through
highly trained, skilled and motivated professionals.

Independent members are committed to delivering superior client service throughout the world,
Large enough to offer a full range of services, yet small enough to deliver personal service and
objective advice,

BKR International member firms are selected for their local influence, expertise and international
capability. Member firns must demonstrate that they have met the standards of their local
jurisdiction, as well as undergo a thorough review by BKR's Regional and Worldwide Boards.

For further information please visit http:/fwaw.bkr com/
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Appendix 2 - Referees 4 AMD

NIRRT

Reference points are listed below, and we welcome your contact with our clients.

City of Busselton

Mike Archer

Chief Executive Officer

(08) 9781 D444

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Financial Management System Reviews, acquittal
audits, fringe benefits tax advice, financial medelling, general advice.

Shire of Harvey

Michael Parker

Chief Executive Officer

(08) 9729 0300

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Financial Management System Reviews,
accounting standards advice, acquittal audits, general advice.

Shire of Donnybrook — Balingup

John Attwood

Chief Executive Officer

(0B) 9780 4200

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Financial Management System Reviews,
Accounting Standards, Acquittal audits, general advice.

Shire of Pingelly

Mick Oliver

Chief Executive Officer

(08) 9887 1066

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Financial Management System Reviews,
Accounting Standards, Acquittal audits, general advice.

Shire of Manjimup

Jeremy Hubble

Chief Executive Officer

(08) 9771 77T

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Financial Management Systemn Reviews,
Accounting Standards, Acquittal audits, general advice.

Additional current local govemment client reference points are available upon request

Bega Garnbirrngu Health Services Incorporated

Wayne Johnson

Chief Executive Officer

(08) 9022 5500

Example of services provided: Annual audit, Internal audits, Financial Reporting Advice,
Acquittal audits, general advice.

Geraldton Port Authority

Ric Prochraoj

Finance Manager

(08) 9838 0003

Example of services provided: Internal Audit.
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Appendix 3 — Insurance Coverage ﬂ?\z‘ PLM,,,D

Pubhic Liability MNexus Risk 161A0001450FF 520 million 30 June 2012
Services Allianz
Aust Insurance
Limited
Workers Nexus Risk WWHOD5E226 50 million 30 June 2012
Compensation / Services Allianz
Personal Accxdent | Aust Insurance | [

Limited
Professional MNexus Risk TU/PIF20100056 510 milliorn 30 June 2012
Indemnity Services Dual

Austraha Pty Lid

Please note: Certificates of insurance can be provide upon request
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Appendix 4 — Key Personnel 4 AMD

Key audit personnel from AMD's Audit and Assurance team are as follows:

Tim Partridge, B.Com, FCA, lIAA

Partner, Audit & Assurance Services

Tim completed a Bachelor of Commerce at the University of Westem
Australia in 1994 and commenced his career with KPMG in Feburary
1995 as a Graduate Accountant in the Audit Division,

While at KPMG, Tim completed his Professional Year in 1987 and was
subsequently admitted as a Chartered Accountant. Tim's role as a
Senior in the Audit Division involved planning audits, conducting
fieldwork and preparing accounts for a broad range of clients,
including companies listed on the Australian Stock Exchange.
rultinationals, large proprietary companies, Government departments
and statutory authorities,

Originally from the South West, Tim moved to Bunbury after being offered a position at AMD
Chartered Accountants in September 1998,

As AMD's Audit and Assurance Services Partner, Tim is responsible for the audits of a broad
range of organisations including large proprietary companies, private corperations, Government
Trading Enterprises, Local Government authorities and co-operatives,

His role includes the preparation of financial reports in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Corporations Act and other legislative requirements for many clients, once audits
have been completed. Responsible for technical advice in relation to accounting issues and
reporting requirements, Tim adopts a practical approach when assisting clients in these areas.

Tim is also actively involved in assurance related services for a range of non-audit clients,
including due diligence reviews, investigative accounting and business reviews relating to the
purchase and sale of businesses.

In addition to holding client seminars and technical updates throughout the year, Tim also
lectured Auditing at Edith Cowan University for a number of years.

In January 2003, Tim became a Registered Company Auditer with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission and was admitted as a Partner of AMD in July 2004, Tim is a member
of the Institute of Internal Auditors Australia, a Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors and was acknowledged as a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 2010.

Tim has been a Board member of the Bunbury Cathedral Grammar School since 2007; and is
currently Chair of the Bunbury Cathedral Grammar School Finance Committee, in addition to
Deputy Chair of the Board.

Tim's experience in Local Government auditing resulting in AMD being included as a preferred
supplier of audit services by the Western Australian Local Government Association,
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Appendix 4 — Key Personnel AMD

Maria Cavallo, B.Bus, CA

Audit Associate, Audit & Assurance Services

Maria completed a Bachelor of Business degree at Edith Cowan
University with a double major in Accounting and Public Practice in
November 2001. She subseguently commenced employment with AMD
as a graduate auditer in December of the same year.

Maria progressed to audit supervisor in June 2004, and then to audit
manager in June 2005. She is responsible for completing audits for a
wide range of clients in various industries including local government,
insurance, education providers, employment, welfare, performing arts,
solicitors, real estate and sporting clubs,

i Maria is responsible for supervising and cenducting audits; from the
initial planning on interim audits, to completing final audits and preparing annual reports in
accordance with accounting standards and other relevant legislation.

Maria also performs financial systems reviews for various clients and can provide advice in
relation to technical accounting issues and reporting requirements such a&s International
Financial Reporting Standards, related party transactions and consclidation accounting for
subsidiaries. Her role includes the preparation of financial reports in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, Corporations Act and other legislative reguirements for many clients,
once audits have been completed.

Maria completed her professional year studies, and qualified as a Chartered Accountant in
November 2004. Ongoing studies have resulted in Maria keeping up to date with changes in
accounting standards and financial reporting legislation.

Maria currently is the Audit lecturer and tutor at Edith Cowan University, and has been so since
2005,

The Australian Securities and Investment Commission has recognised Maria as a Registered
Company Auditor, effective January 2007. Maria is also & member of the Institute of Internal
Auditors of Australia,

Maria was made an Associate of the firm on 1 July 2010, and was also recognized with a 'Highly
Commended Award' from the President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia, in
October, in recognition of her sernvices.

Maria is a member of the Diocesan Finance Council and Treasurer of the Bunbury Cathedral
Grammar School Old Grammarians' Association Inc, These roles enable her to enhance her
standing in the local business community and provide an opportunity for the extension of Maria's
accounting knowledge,
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Appendix 4 — Key Personnel ‘ﬂ AMD

Rebecca Broad

Audit Supervigor, Audit and Assurance Services

Rebecca joined AMD in January 2007 as an assistant in our awdit
division. She is currently completing her Bachelor of Business at Edith
Cowan University in Bunbury majoring in accounting. Rebecca is
studying part time for the remainder of her studies, gaining experience
at AMD within her field of study,

Rebecca intends to complete her studies fo become a Chartered
Accountant, en completion of her Bachelor of Business degree.

Rebecca was promoted to the position of audit supervisor on 1 July
2010.

Alisha Kellow B.Bus
Audit Senior, Audit and Assurance Services

Alisha completed a Bachelor of Business degree at Edith Cowan
University with a double major in Accounting and Public Practice in
June 2010,

Alisha commenced her career with RSM Bird Cameron in December
2007, where she worked as an Undergraduate Accountant prior to
commencing with AMD's Audit and Assurance Division at AMD in
June 2010.

Alisha commenced the Chartered Accountant Program to be
recognised as a Chartered Accountant in January 2011

Ray Van tonder
Auditor, Audit and Assurance Services

Ray commenced his studies in South Africa before relocating to
Australia in November 2008. He completed a Bachelor of Business
degree at Edith Cowan University with & major in Accounting in
November 2010 and commenced his career with a small firm in
September 2010, working as an Undergraduate Accountant in their
taxation department until leaving his employment to join the Audit
Division at AMD in January 2012,

Ray has also commenced with the Chartered Accountants Program in
June 2011.

Page 20 of 21
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ATTACHMENT 2 TOITEM 7.1.1

o Grant Thornton

M Tan Hill
Acting Chief Executive Officer 0K
ings Park Rcad

Town of Port Hadland WEST PERTH WA 6005
Croe Centre P Box 570

West Pedth W2 5572
MeGregor St T+ 51 3 0450 2000
PORT HEDLAND WA E+51 59322 TT&7

P .
B l-ia]; 2012 ' www grantthoenion. com.su
Drear Ian,

PROVISION OF EXTERHAL AUDIT SERVICES - TEBC1D4382
Thank you for the oppormnity to provide onr Offer in relation to the Prowision of External
Amdit Services for the Town of Port Hedland (“the Town™).

We have a proven track record of providing consistent high quality, proactive and cost
effectrre andit sermices and are experts i working with Local Government Orpanizations.

In addmon, we enzrently service a mmumber of andit clients throughont the Pilbara.
Flease find enclosed ons Proposal for Andit Sermices docnment as well as this letter.
A copy of the price schednle is also ontlined belowr;

Fee (Total Fixed Lonp Sum. .
Frovision of Audit Services for the Towm of

2012

Frovision of Audit Services for the Town of

Fort Hedland for the year ended 30 June 2003 21,500 180
Frovision of Audit Services for the Toan of

Port Hedland am for the year ended 30 June 23,500 1sr
2004

30 June 2012 8,000 =

Please note the above fees exclnded GST and any disbursements such as travel are billed at
cost. Please also note the above fee does not inclode the andit of grant acquuttals which are
billed at between $500 and $1,000 per grant acquittal {excluding G5T) depending on the
complexity and / or voleme of transactions applicable to the acqmittal.

Grand Thormios Aasireli Limitec) A5 41 [27 555 39

Gt Thermios Aesvireie Lirsisc i & rerbs o wiin St T Ll (st Thermicn S b A e ik writves permarshe Gt Thamioe
st Liried, ingeter it vl Bavirsia

Lisizikty Bmiled by & scheme approved under Professional Siandands Legisiation
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o Grant Thornton 2
Omg houly rates for any services required owrside the andit sermices listed abowe are;
Homgly Rate

§
Partnes H0
Ianaper 200
In Charge 160
Staff 100

Omir service model 13 built around the quality of one people, and is based npon developing a

close business relationship and wodking with you thronghout the year to proactively deal

with any andit issoes as they anse. In snmmary, we provide:

* acollaberative and preactive partnership — our people are npfront and friendly,
and focnsed on excellent commmnication;

* technical expertise — a breadth and depth of knowledge, capabilities, support
resongces and tools to delver the services you requise; and

* 3 cost effectrre value added service.

We are confident in our ability to meet your andit needs and look forrard to building a
long-term relationship with the Town.  Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any

gueries regarding the above or our tender proposal

GRANT THORNTOMN AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Acconntants

/hj?;ﬂ_,

hlichelle Spam
Associate Director — Andit & Assnzance
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o GrantThornton

Town of Port Hedland

Audit Services for the Town of Port Hedland
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A. Why Grant Themteon

Thank yon for the oppormaity to provide ons proposal in relation to being appointed as
anditoss of the Town of Por Hedland  We have a proven track secord of providing
consistent high guality, proactive and cost effective andit services.

Cmic firm 35 one of the oldest established fiems of acconntants i Western Anstralia and has
a repntation for providing chents with quality service on a timely basis. Grant Thorton 1s
one of the largest acconating firms in Anstralia and fifth larpest international acconnting
fiem

The firm has 14 parmers and 130 emplovees in WA, of whom 40 are involved fnll time on
andit and cosporate services.

There ace a mmber of clear advantages to be gained by having Grant Thornton as the
anditars of the Towmn

= A focus on providing personalised quality service to our clients.

= We will mest the Town's deadline for issuing our awdit opinion.

= ahility to work successfully with local govemment
authorities.

= A strong association with many Local Government dients across
Australia.

= Cwr team has extensive knowledge and experisnce of local
government issues.

= An incdepth knowledge of the operations and management of local
gowvernment authorties.

= A public sector division established to focus on issues specific in
nature o the public secior.

= Demonstrated knowiedge of the Local Government Act and its
Regulations.

=  Access to the latest accounting issues that may impact on the
Town.

= Ayditis focused on risk exposures to the Town.

=  Heavy emphasis on adding value to the Town's operations.

= We offer an in-depth review of management practices.

= All communication is done on a timely basis.

= A strong commitment fo quality.

=  Where possible we will benchmark the Town's cperations against
other Coundils.

= |ntensive use of technology to maximise efficency and assurance.

= We deliver exceptional value whilst bringing you best practice and a
focus on risk.
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The Grant Thomton professional team will work with the Town's staff to ensne that the
provision of quality andit services i3 carried ont in 3 timely and efficient manner and with
vouz complete knowdedge at all tmes.

We are ensrently the anditors of the Cives’ of Perth, Fremande, Strking, Joondalup,
Bockingham, Greater Geraldton, Albany the Town of Forinana, and several segronal
Conneils melnding the Mindane Regional Connel. We have premonsly condnered mternal
andit assipnments for the Ciry of Stiding and nnderaken specal assipnments snch as an in-
depth management seview of the City of Studing, Towm of Famnana and the City of
Armadale.

The Office of the Anditor General has engaged ns to condnet the external andit of 2
stpnificant nmmber of government agencies.

A.1 High Quality Serviee and Deliverables
Cmy approach is based on a gquality service methodology, which selies npon ons thorongh
nnderstanding of the Town's operations.

We believe the key to a snecessfnl relationship is comamnication. Comnmnication plays a
stenificant part in onr approach, specifically:

s Om senios staff aze always avalable to disonss any matters with the Town

*  We will establish clear commuaication lines with management and all relevant parties.

*  Omyr team will ensnre we addeess enguidies to the right people in each area we are
reviewing thereby minimising dismption to the Town.

*  TIssnes will be bronght to yons attention immediately as they anse. We will work with
Ton to fesolve 1s5mes m A professional and commercial manner

*  Any “marerial ems” noted dnring the congse of ons andit will be reported wia a
Management Report.”

A.2 Organisational Prefile

Bentleys and Hall Chadwick mesped acconnting practices i July 2005 and in 20058 became
the Grant Thomton Perth office. The combination of these two firms creared a fizm which
is one of the oldest established firms of acconntants in Western Anstralia and has and will
continne to have a repntation for promidmg chents with guality service on a tmely basis.
Grane Thomiton now has the largest audir chenr base of the second ger accounang
firms in Westem Ausraka.

Omyg andit team has also provided information technology consnlting services to a ranpe of
government and povate organisations.

PAGE 46



MINUTES: SPECIAL AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Town of Port Hedland

B Some of our valued clients
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c Your Reguirements

C.1 Obkjectives and Scope of the Audit

At the conchuzion of owe andit work, we will issne onr opinion as to whether the Teown's
accomnts are propecly kept and its financial report 15 presented faidy in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1995, Local Government (Fmaneial
Ilanagement) Begnlanons 1996 (as amended), Anstralian Acconnting standards, other
mandatory professional reporting requirements and the Towe's internal processes and
Corporate Procednses.

We are requured pursnant to the Tender to provide the following:

* Financial Starements andits- to ensnre the financial statements comply with acconnting
standards and the Local Government Act.

s Andit Certificates and Reports — to prepare and andit all necessary certificates as
requited by the Conned. This incledes the andit of vations acquittal andits.

C.2 Audit Methedalogy and Appreach

We confirm that owr andit vill be nndertaken in accordance with Anstralian Anditing
Standards and Anditing Guudance Statements adopted by the Anstralian Society of Certified
Practicing Acconatants and the Institute of Chartered Acconntants i Anstralia and wall
comply with the requirements of section 7.9 of the Local Government Act 1995, the Local
Government (Andit) Regnlations 1996

C.32 Qur Intended Appreach
Bazed on onr nnderstanding of local government anthorities and a review of the most recent
financial statements, we have identified the following ket areas of foons:

Inesme Statement - Checklist

= Sample testing of controls and transactions.

= Documentation and testing of payroll system.

= Analytical review.

= Systems review and testing of key controls.

= Testing a sample of payments to ensure appropriatehy
approved and processed.

= Anahytical review.

= Review the Contracts Register Procedures.

= Test expenditure based on materiality for compliance with the
Act and its regulations.

=  Review relevant legal documentation.

= Systems review of receipting and testing of key controls.

= Test sample of Rate Motices to ensure GRV is comect.

= Test posting to General Ledger.

=  Ensure (where applicable) late penalies imposed.

=  Ensure that exempt land and specified area rates have been
property approved and in accordance with the Act.
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Other Revenues: = Documentation and testing of receivables system.
- Proht on Sale of non-coment SR ES W= ) BT T

assets = Trading activities - conduct analyfical review and tests of the
- Third Party revenue control emvironment.

collection [e.g.: FESA)

- Dther Revenue

= Systems review of receipting and testing of controls.

= Acquit expenditure and ensure it is in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Grant.

PAGE 49



MINUTES: SPECIAL AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 23 MAY 2012

Town of Port Headland -]

Balance Sheet - Checklist

Significant Auditable Area Expected Audit Approach

Cash Assets: = Analytical review.
Bank and Short Term Investmenis =  \erify compliance with the Council's Imvestment policy.
»  Review of bank reconciliations.
=  Confimnation of balances.
=  Review classification of restricted cash assets.
Accounts Receivable (Curment and = Analytical review.
Mon Current) and prepaymenis = Cut off testing.

Confimnation of significant balamnces.

Review collection procedures, incduding infringement notices.
‘erify compliance with the Council's Investment policy.
Review dassification and valuation given available market
evidence.

Drocumentation and testing of imentony system.
Systems review and testing of key controls.

Testing of significant additions and disposals.
Analytical review of balances.

=  Ensure invoices raised relating o capital expenditure are not
expensed.

Review Council's Policy on capitalising infrastructure asseis.
Review of valuation of land and buildings.

Council approval obtained for acquisitions and disposals.
\erification of the fixed assets registers and ensures that it
operates in accordance with the regulations.

= Analytical review.

= Cut off testing.

=  Search for omitted liabilities.
Provision for annual and long = Analbytical review.
senice leave entiternents »  Testing of significant balances.

=  Re-perform calculations where appropriate.
Loans and Bomowings including =  Third party confirnation.
e —
Reserve funds = Analytical review.

=  \erify compliance with the Council's policy

=  Confimnation of balances.

=  Review classification of restricted/unrestricted accounts.
Contingent Liabilities =  Verification of amounts
el oo

Capital Commitments Ensure policies and procedures have been followed and
review for reasonableness and accuracy.
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Other Audit Werk - Checklist

Significant Auditable Area Expected Audit Approach

Compliance with Australian =
Accounting Standands (Accounting
Policies and Motes to the Financial

Intemal Audit Funclion =

Ensure budigets are property prepared and approved in
accordance with the Local Govemment Act.

Review actual revenue and expenditure against expectad
results.

Review the Council's published budget to identify any areas
that may be inconsistent with prior years and alert the Council
to these matters.

Ensure that the Council has completed its Statutory
Caornpliance Retum.

All necessary Registars hawve besn maintained.

Caonfimn that disclosures in the annual budget and financial
repart are in accordance with Regulafons.

Ensure compliance with the requirements of Australian
Accounting Standards.

Where possible we will rety on the work undertaken by the
intermal audit division.

D Ability te eomply with the Tewn's Audit Timetahle

It wonld be ons intention to condnet the andit of the Town in toro visits. An anomal interioy
wiait 15 to be held berween Apol and June with the tning as agreed by management and a
final wzt wath timing as agreed by management. In addimon, if desired, we can hold an
Entrance Interview and Exit Interview with the Town and artend Andit Committes

mestings a3 required.

It shonld also be noted that ons semor staff are available at any time of the year to disemss
any matters of concern that may anse or to be nsed as a sounding board with snggested

accomnting treatments.
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D.1 Interim Visit

Oy intenm st will pay partienlar attention to reviewing the internal control and systems
and completing ons Local Government checklist to establish that the Town &5 complyng
with all relevant legislation. We will also conduct a review of the process adopted by the
Connel with regard to the preparation of the vear-end financial statements and will adwize at
this stage any work papers or schednles we may require at o final visit

D.2 Final Visit

O final andit vizt will concentrate on the anditing of the financial statements and
vesification of balance sheet items, npdating one controls testing work to ensnze all contsols
we are relying npon contnmed to work satisfactorly and completing ons analynieal semew of
the Town's opesations.  Andit vedfication indndes ensneing fll and proper disclosnee of all
relevant matters.

Before completing on visit all matters of significance will be bronght to the Town's
attention and resolntion. We at Grant Thornton believe in no snzprises and any matters
identified will be comamnicated to the Town as soon as possible so that the marter can be
quckly resolved.

D.3 Exit Interview

Following the completion of onr semew and other guality control procednres, we will then
hold ong Exit intesview and disemss the findings of the andit, disemss any areas that we may
improve the performance of ons andit, and star ons planning for next year.

D.4 Reperting

We acknowledge onr obligations pursnant to sectton 7.9 of the Local Government Act 1995
with regard to the ssning of 2 manapement report. Before formally issming management
repodrts, it is onr policy to discrss with the relevant personnel ons findings so that we muay
confirm onur observations and to allow the relevant personnel the opportanity to present
other information that we may not have conudered nos had prior access to. We believe in
“no surpoises” and stove to ensnuge that all semor management is fully aware of ons fndings
and secommendations before they are formally presented. In addimon as part of onr andir
we will actively seek oppormaities to add valne to the Town's processes.

D.5 Complianee audit & Grant acguittals

We will perform the necessary andit examinations to conficm compliance with all acceptable
legzslation and Conneil policies governing the Town's activities and the operation of
different Funds maintaned by the Town, and for Fondmg bodies advancing Grant Funding:
to the Town. These andits and acquittals will be condneted at a time as arranged with the
MManagement of the Town

E Abkility te Perferm and Demeonstrated Experience
Cmy firm has extensive expenence in the provision of a vasety of andit and andit selated
servrces to the public and private sectors.

In parmienlar, we have extense knowledge and nnderstanding of the Local Government
legrslation and the varions systems in place throngh ons experience on the andits of the
followring:
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External Audit Services To Local Government

= Clyof Perh” = City of Cockbum®

»  Westem Australlan Local Govemment »  City of Rockingham®
Association "WALGA™)."

®  Cly of Fremantie® ®  Shire of DerbyMest Kimberley

= Cly of Stiring” ®  City of Bunoury”

= Clyof Joongalup® ®  City of Mediands - Intemal Augit

® iy of Greater Geraldion - ®  Cue Shire Councl

= Ciy of Albany” = Town of Claremont

=  Mindarke Reglonal Councl® = City of Wanneroo®

= Town of Kwinana® *  Shire of Rosboume”

»  Pbara Reglonal Councll ®  Shire of Wiluna

* Curmently audited by Grant Tharmton

Grant Thornton i a significant andit practice and condnets the external andits of ASY Lsted
companies, public nnlisted companies, larpe private compames and smmerons othes entities.

Frther, we are contracted by the Office of the Anditor General to nndertake the external
andit of 34 government agencies.

Alzo, ong public sector assmrance divizsion nndertakes the mternal anditor fnection for a
mmmber of govemment agencies and is also recopnised for prowiding “probiry andivor’

SELVICES.
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Referees
Current Client | Referees / Contact name | Contact Number m
City of Pecth (D8} 9461 3333

Mana.get Corporate Services pﬁ:dn.wa.gcwm
City of Mlr Alan Carmichzel (08) 9432 9715 alane(ii fremantle.
Fremantle Manager Finance & WA pov.an

i .

E.1 Qualifieation te Conduet Lecal Government Audits
Mr Michael Hillgrove FCA (Partner) — Registered Company Audifor (No.: 16037).

MMfichael 15 the Parmer in charpe of Granr Thoraron’s Poblic Sector Assnmance Division and
has over 20 years andit expenence. MMichael is responsible for the andirs of local
government entrties mecheding the City of Perth, Cockbnmn, Fremantle, Canning and
Joondalng and the Town of Kwinana.

Mr Patrick Warr FCPA (Partner) — Registered Company Auditor (Mo.: 302461).

Parnick 15 a gqualified acconntant and has in excess of 25 years’ expenience. Chrer this pesiod
he has andited ammerons local government shises and several conneidls and = the QA andit
Partner fior local povernment entities.

Ms Michelle Spain CA (Associate Director) — Regisfered Company Auditor (No.:405213)

MMichelle iz a qualified acconntant and has over 12 years” experience. Michelle is involved in
the andits of the City of Perth, City of Stithing, City of Fremantle, City of Joondalnp, City of
Greater Geraldton, Shice of Roebourne, City of Rockngham  City of Albany and the
Western Amstralian Local Government Association (WALGA'). Llichells has extensime
expenence in Local Govesnment and is well experienced with the issnes and concerns facng
Local Government.

Alternative Staff
We have a pool of staff experienced in the andits of local govemment and shonld thns be

able to prowide expesienced replacement staff shonld any member of the nonunated team be
nnavailable.
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F Technical Expertise

Grant Thornton 3= the largest andit practice ontside the big fons mternational practices in
Pesth This ensnses we have a hich lovel of technical expertize. Fusther, andit staff have

stprificant andit experience. As gualified acconntants, all professional staff are obliged to
nndertake contimmal professional development within the requirements of their professional
bodies.

Grant Thornton provides extensive technieal internal and extesnal training to its
professional staff Chmartedy acconnting npdates are also provided to all staff to ensnse that
staff’s technical knowledge 13 kept np-to-date wath any changes in acconnting standards.

Grant Thornton Perth and Grant Thocnton National (every capital city) shares its technical
expertise and meet on an annnal basis for a professional development week.

All Grant Thoenton anditors are provided with laptops, latest software packages and mohile
phones to enmre thet operare m an efficient manner and ae accesuble at all nmes.

F.1 Fees for Other Audits and Ad Hoe Advice
Fleaze refer to the attached poce schednle for ont fee estimate.

Additional andit services can be provided on a quotation basis, pursnant to part G of this
Artachment.

We are happy to advize that there will be no addiional charges for peneral support provided
theonghont the year; at Grant Thomton we recogmise that as yonr anditor it 15 important
that you view ns s the point of first call for financial admee, feedback and direction. All of
omg staff will be avadable dnsing the entre year to aswst with any enguuries, which will be at
no additional cost.

G. Services

Grant Thornton offers many specialist acconnting services. Other services we can provide
are a5 follows:

*  Probuy Andits

¢ Taxation and Business Services — GST and FET
* Emsziness Recovery and Insolvency Sermces

*  Propery 3ervices — Feasbility Stmdies

* Information Systems Fevews

s  DNlanagement Remews

¢ Preparation of Ensiness Flans

*  Rusk Alanagement Reviews

Grant Thornton Andit and Cosporate Services Division's expedence is extensive. Vears of
peactice in providing chents with these sermices has enabled onr fiem to develop the most
effective andit systems and the best corporate and conmltancy resonrees to enable ns to
offer a booad range of guality services to ons clients. An ontline of onr other services
followrs.
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G.1 Prebity Audits

Grant Thornton has extensive experience in nndertaking probity andirs. Typically these
types of “targeted andits"™ have been nsed by ons clients to obtain assncance that there has
been compliance with repnlation gridelines and best practice puncipals. Snch andits prowide
ohjective, independent wiews on the processes of projects and serves to minimize problems
and ensure the process i3 both transparent and equitable and the final decizion defensible.

G.2 Internal Audits
Grant Thornton can nadertake internal andits or assist clients to set np intemnal andit
fanctons. The internal andit services mclnde:

*  Strategic andit Planning

*  FRusk Aszessment and hManagement
&  Systems Based Andits

s Operational /Performance Andits
*  Information Systems Andits

*  Acconnting Mannals

¢  Frand Investipations

¢ Emnsines: Resumption Planmng

G.3 Infermation Systems Audits

With sophisticated softoase packages, spectalized methodolomes and experienced staff.
Grant Thornton can andit information systems, seview compter secnaty, and appraise
general and application controls. Andit mvolvement in the development of new systems in
a cost-effective sermee that nxmnises the risks of errors and failnges m new systems.

G.4 Taxation

We can prowide a full mange of taxation sermces mehading puedance on diffienlt 135mes
relating to Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). We have
previonsly conducted reviews on behalf of local government anthonties to enswre that fringe
benefits tax i3 corectly computed and not over or wnder paid
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H. Other Matters

H.1 Insuranee Ceverage
We provide the following details of ong msnrance coverage:

Amount
$

Public Liability cGU 100 3580654 50,000,000 30 June 12
Insuramce Lid

Professional QBE Casualty 11PI245737EAM 1P245738FA 20,000,000 30 April 12

Indeminity Syndicate 386

Workers' ciGU Oe02-g2E2 50,000,000 30 June 12

Compensation Insurance Lid

* Aviting desails of newr policy.

H.2 Quality Assuranee and Quality Management

Audit Methodology

As part of Grant Thomton International (GTI), one firm ntilises GTT's wodd-class globally
developed and supported Honzon® andit methodology.

All GTI firms thronghont the wodd ae required to apply the Horzon® methodalogy to all
andit engagements to ensnre all andit wodk is carded ont to the highest standards.

The methodology i flly compliant with and has been benchmarked to, both intemational
standards on mditing and all Anstralian equivalents thereto. It is a risk and assertion driven
methodology which concentrates the andit process on key buziness and financial reporting
risks and ensnges fll review of the client contnmance and planmng procednres at the
commencement of the assignment.

The methodology &= delivered via GTT's proprietary software system known as Vorager.
Althongh based on intemational delivery templates to ensnre global consistency, the
approach is modified to ensure all local stamtory and other requirements ace fully met. GTI
has spent many millions of dollars to deliver Vorager which wall argnably be the wodd's
leading platform for the delivery of high quality, integrated assnance secmces.

The quality assncance practicas within Hordzon® and Vovager are based on ISQC] and the
equivalent Anstralian professional statement APES320. This ensnres that the key elsments
of 2 system of quality control are embedded into everything that we do.

Internal Procedures
In addmon, the firm has sporons intemal procednges for guality control which melnde:

Guiality Assurance Procedures

Appropriate staff selection procedurss and professional development programmes for staf at all
levels;

Comprehensive training of sta thiough national Grant Thomton Induction programmes and on-going
formial tralning at all leveds through Grant Thomton nationally and the Institute of Charered
Accountants In Ausiralla,

Close supenvision of st on the job;
Partner and Manager detalled reviews of all work; and
Sirict procedures for maintaining cllent conMdentiality
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H.3 Outeome of an External Quality Review Conducted
As part of Grant Thomton International, all Grant Thornton member firms are subject to
ammerons quality control reviews.

In additton to onr nternal fiom review which i3 concentrated on compliance with APES320
guality control processes, we are also reviewed regnlady by both Grant Thoton Anstralia
and by Grant Thomton Internationsl to ensnre compliance with GTT's global mality
practices. This inclndes the selection of a variety of files to test check work guality.

We are also subject to review by the Anstralian Secnates and Tnrestments Commission and
the Instmte of Chatesed Acconntants in Anstralia. The Manonal and International
approach to andit methodologr and quality procednses was very well regarded by ASIC.

In ong last revew by the Instmte of Chartered Acconamnr: nunos remedial action was
recommended by the reviewer and these recommendations have now been implemenred 1o
address the matters rarsed. The reviewer in his report concleded that - "MNotwmthstanding
these comments [re remedial actton) the practice 15 to be commended for its approach to
quality control and the prowision of quality client serrices”.

H.4 Conflict of Interest

O fiem wonld have no conflict of interest in nndertaking this assipnment. Shonld a
srmation arise that may lead to a conflict of interest the marttes wonld be raised with yon 0
that proper procednges conld be put in place to ensnge the matter was appropriately dealt
with. We have no other contracts with the Town.

I Finaneial Abkility and Ressurces
Grant Thornton Andit Pty Led is a wholly owned subsidiary of Grant Thornton Anstralia
Limited. Andited financial statements of Grant Thosnron Anstralia Limited are available

npod IEq"I-E-Et.
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Appendix 1 - Key Personnel
Michael Hillgrowve

IMfichael 15 the anditor or advizor to a smmber of local government anthoities inchading-

" Western Anstrabian Local Government ®  City of Perth
Associanon (WALGA)

* Ciry of Fremante *  Ciry of Joondalnp
*  Ciry of Stiding *  Ciry of Canning
* City of MNedlands — Internal Andir * Town of Farinzna
*  City of Cockbnen ®  City of Bunbusy

DLfichael joined Grant Thornton in Febmary 2001 and became a Parmer on 15t Jannasy
2002

Experience

Fons years as Associate Director of Andit at the Office of the Anditor General from 1996 to
December 2000.

Prior to this, Michael has held semior manager positions at leading accomnting firms in the
assngance, cofporate sermices and reconstmetion divisions being mitially appointed andit
manager at Dielodttes in 1957,

Ifichael has extensive andit expenence across a broad spectmm of government Stamrory
Amthonities and Departments inclnding:

*  Water Corporation, Water & Rivers Commission and the Western Anstralizn Tondsm
Commyission;

¢  Port Anthosties inclnding Fremantle, Port Hedland, Albaoy and Bunbucy,

* A numbers of the Stare’s Hospitals and Development Commissions;

* Local Government Andits mclnding the City of Perth, City of Joondalep, City of
Suirling, Western Anstralian Local Government Assocmation ("WALGA’);

* The State’s Transpost Sector inclnding the Department of Transpost, Westrail, hain
Roads (WA) and Meteobns; and

® The State’s Land sector agencies inclnding the Department of Land Adsinistration
Landecorp, the Redevelopment Anthorties of Midland, East Perth and Subiaco and the

With Michael's expenence comes an in depth knowledge of the Stare’s Financial
Administration and Andit Act and Treasnrer's Instrnetions together with a strong awaseness
of many Statutory Anthonties enablmg legislation. In addition, his mndesstanding has been
further enhanced by being mvolved on nmmerons public sector agencies committess’
internal andit.

Qualifications
— Bachelor of Busmness - Cnrtn University
— Chantered Acconntant (ACA)
— Remstered Company Anditor
— MMember of the Instmte of Internal Anditors
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Patrick Warr

Patrick 15 qualified acconntant whom has i excess of toenty five years professional
experience gained in the public and povate sector, within Anstralia and overseas. He
commenced his caseer as an anditor with the Office of the Anditor General (WA} and
dusing iz seven years emplovment was promoted to Andit Manager.

To enhance his experience Patrick nndestook several commereial acconnring roles oves a
seven year pedod before re-entering public practice. He has foensed on developme
consnltancy and external and mnternal anditing, probity anditing and general consnltancy
owver the last fire years. He has condncted nisk assessments and corpomate governance
reviews on behalf of the Anstralian Agency for International Development (AnsATD),
general corpomte governance reviews for ASK histed companies, mternal and external andits
of public and povate companies, government agencies and not for profit entities and ad-hoc
AssiprMEnts.

He has extensive WA public sector andit expenience and cnecently plans, monitors and
reviews and laises with OAG for existing contracted andits. Other chents inchede:

*  Merey Commnanty Sermices Ine. * Main Roads WA

* Puoblic Transport Antharity *  Eastland Medical Systems Ltd
* Educational Instimtions (12) * id Eopiy WA

* Landeosp * Medical Corposation Ltd

* Office of the Anditor Generl * Mercy Hospital Monnt Lawler
*  Ciry of Geraldton-Greenongh * Teanserv Lid

® Rand Mining NL ® Cuy of Albany

Profezzional Gualifications and Appointments
— Bachelor of Bnsiness (Curtin University)
— Fellow CPA/ Affiliate Institute of Chartered Acconntants
— Registered Company Anditor
— Registered Tax Apent
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Michelle Spain
MMichelle joined Granr Thomron in 2000, being appointed to Assocate Director in 2010 and
has wodsed on a wide vadety of andits (both internal and external) incheding

* City of Fremante " City of Greater Geraldton

* City of Perth * Broad Gronp Holdings Pry Led

* City of Joondalep * Strathearn Insnrance Brokess

* City of Surhng * Mindare Regonal Comneil

* City of Albany " Western Anstralian Local Government
Association ["WALGA)

* University Credit Sociery * City of Rockingham

* Shire of Roebonme " Shire of Winaa

hfichelle has been mvolved in all aspects of an andit from reviewing systems and control
ENTIIONMEnts, 1o A55es5my organisational asks and complance.

Professional Qualifications
—  Dllember, Institate of Chartered Acconatants in Anstralia
— Bachelor of Seience - Cnrtin University
— Bachelor of Commerce - Cnamin Universiry
— BRepistered Company Anditor
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Appendix 2 — Auditor Registration
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ATTACHMENT 3TO ITEM 7.1.1

. r
UH! ’HEIII"IEE Norton 4 (o
Chartered Accountants WALGA

B May 2012

Mr P Martin

Chief Executive Officer
Town of Port Hedland

PO Box 41

PORT HEDLAMD WA 6721

Dear Paul

QUOTATION
PROVISION OF AUDIT SERVICES

We are pleased to submit our quotation for the supply of audit services to the Town of Port Hedland for the three years
commencing | July 2011,

We believe that the detail contained in our profile, along with the information provided in this letter, will demonstrate
our experience, expertise, commitment and leng term involverment in the provision of audit and related services to local
government within Western Australia,

Superior Service

UHY Haines Norton has WALGA preferred supplier status and is able to offer a complete audit team with
considerable depth of experience, expertise and knowledge of the local government industry in Western
Australia, This means we are able to provide an efficient and effective aondit process. All stalf who would be
involved in the awdit will be sourced from owr dedicated local government service team and all have had
experience over a significant number of years and engagements.

It is not by accident we have been appointed to the WALGA audit panel. The appointment followed a rigorous
due diligence process which considered our expertise, experience and ability to deliver a quality service to the
local government induostry im YYestern Aunstralia for close to the last two decades. Those who were not included
on the panel were left of T for good reason.

We also believe our experience and the service we are able to provide is superior to that of our competitors, Our
methodology considers all aspects of local government flinancial systems including an in depth review of
compliance with Part 6 of the Act, the Financial Managemeni Regulations and best practice.

We are currently the appointed asditor of your Town and have been for a number of vears. Stall members from
vour Town also attend our annual workshep series. Consequently, we are confident vou have had first hand
experience of the high level of service, expertise and commitment we are able to deliver,

Fees

Mot all audits are the same and like many other professional services, vou get what you pay for,

Mot only are we WALGA preferrved suppliers, but due to the nature of oar client base, we are subject to a
rigorous regulation process by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC). Many of our
competitors are not subject to this rigorous regulation and as a consequence, do not have the quality systems and
processes we are required to have,

§o el (0 0444 3300 16 Lakeside Conporste 24 Parkiand Roed Osbome Park Pers Vs 6017 & : perthi®ubyhin comau
¥ BT (000 G444 3430 A0 Box 1707 Osborne Park WA 8916 [ v, i L

A nebvaork of independent Trms in Australia and Mew Zealand snd a member of Uibach Hadker Young Iviemational Linvted, an ssernational neteordk. of independent

accounling and consulting fines

LIHY Hames Noron - &80 87 245 233 206
Lianiity limited by a scheme appraved under Professional Standards Legislstion
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Our fee quotes Tor the provision of audil services are as follows:

Fees ntin

Applicable Tatal
Annual Financial Report uoie GST (GST Inclusive)
b 5 b1
Yearcnded - 30 June 2012 25,000 2,500 27,500
30 June 2013 26,000 2600 28,600
30 Jume 2014 27,000 2,700 29,700
Financial Management Review
2012 8,000 200 8,800
2013 8,500 850 9350
2014 9,000 900 G500

In addition, reasonable out-of-pocket travel, accommodation, living and incidental expenses (based on our internal
“Travel Expenses Policy™) will be invoiced at cost to the Town. Travel expenses will only include out-of-pocket costs
and will not include the time cost involved,

The above fees are also based on the nature of this engagement being “clean™ and on the assumption all information
requirements are met (prior to our year end visit an information requiremenns letter is sent). They also assume no major
accounting or system weaknesses are encountered which would require any abnormal additional investigation and
testing,

Should engagement conditions vary or the level of operations of the Town vary significantly from those upon which we
have based our quotation, we reserve the right to renegotiste the fee for any given year (subject to mutual agreement).
An example of this would be the mandating of the application of fair value accounting. The additional awdit procedures
required (panticularly in relation to Year 1| and the road infrastructure network) would be reasonably significant.

Please note, the fees quoted do not necessarily include any fee associated with the engagement pariner meeting with the
audit committee & this is dependent on the particular forum adopted each year, This fee will be subject to separate
negotiation once the manner of the meeting is determined each year, As a minimum, a fee of $500 applics for
preparation and telephone attendance.,

IF satisfactory to Council, we would propose the fee be billed in two equal instalments, after our interim visit and
following completion (sign off) of each vear's audit.

Any additionzl work in the form of accounting assistance or other services outside the scope of the audit function will
be subject to a separate fee 1o be agreed upon with you prior to the work being underiaken,
Certifications/ Acquittals (including Roads to Recovery and Pensioner Deferred Rates)

Other cestifications/acquittals are considered to be outside the scope of cur normal audit function as both the number
and the scope of work varies significantly from acquittal and from year to vear.

If all details are prepared fior us and we are able to complete with a minimum of fuss, sur charges typically fall in the
S600 10 81,000 {GST exclusive) range per certification/acquittal {&t current indicative rates)

Value Added Services Specific to the Local Government Industry

Aundit Liaison & Guidance

Liaison on audit and accounting issues is not only provided free of charge during the year, it is encouraged. We believe
by obtaining an answer when it is required, the Council will be more able to provide for an efficient audit process.

We also regularly provide the industry (all local governments) with newsletters containing comment and direction on
topical issues.

Model Financial Report, Model Budget and Annual Workshop

A main ingredient of our lecal government support is our mode] financial report and model budget which is updated
annually,

This has, over the past sixteen years, established a consistent guideline for local governments to follow in respect of
stitutory reporting obligations. An indication of its worth (o the industry is in the number of authorities (clients and non
clienis) that have adopted the reporting formats it provides and the number who attend the course each vear.

INTELLIGEMNT CHOI IMTELLIGEMNT SOLUTIONS

(o]
e
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Value Added Services Specific to the Loeal Government Industry (Continued——
Model Financial Report, Model Budget and Annual Workshop (Continued)

This model also forms the basis of our annual workshop series. This addresses topical accounting issues, reporting
amendments and provides a forum for local government accounting practitioners to ohtain guidance on various
accpunting related matters.

In 2003 we also introduced a “Muts and Bolts” workshop which deals with fundamental local government aceounting
concepts and is abmed at entry level finance officers.

GST, FBT and Salary Packaging Advice

Our local government services division in conjunction with our tex consulting division is also able to provide detailed
advice and assistance n the complex arcas of GST, FBT and salary packaging., Such advice would be provided at
applicable rates,

The hourly rate for additional services depend upon the level of advice required 1t is difficult to commit a firm per
hour price until the exact extent of the level of advice and work required is known.

As at 1 January 2012, indicative rates for this type of work ane as follows:

Fer Hour
{GET exclusive)
5

Partner 440 - 550
Manager 275
Senior 200
Intermediate 160
Graduate 120

We further undertake to provide an estimate of hours and staff level required based on the scope of each task prior to
commencement in each instance.

Dualification to Conduct Local Government Audits

Should we be successful in obtaining the awdit contract the following are the gualified partners of the firm to be
nominated as guditors:

Name Registered Company
Auditor Number

Engagement Partner (either)

Mr I} ] Tomasi 15724

Mr G Godwin 310219

Please note, UHY Haines Norton, Perth, a Perth based partnership (“the firm™), carries on business separately
and independently from other UHY Haines Norton member firms around Australia and New Zealand and UHY
member firms worldwide.

UHY Haines Norton is a member of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited, a UK company, and forms
part of the international UHY network of legally independent accounting and consulting firms.

UHY is the brand name for the UHY international network, The services described herein are provided by the
Firm and not by UHY or any other member firm of UHY. Neither UHY nor any member of UHY has any
liahility for services provided by other members.

Should vou require any clarification of the above information please contact me.
%

Yours faithfyglly /,} R

DAVID TOMASI
PARTNER

Encl
scliend S Cavid Tenders\ 200 2P ort Hedland Town of - Covering Letter » £.05, 12.dom

INTELLIGEMNT CHOICE . INTELLIGENT SOLUTIONS
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1. OUTLINE OF THE FIEM

UHY Hames Morton, Perth, is a respected firm of Chartered Accountants with dnasions providng
services in every aspect of a specialist accounting practice. UHY Haines Norton has, via its anfecedent
firms, provided extensive andit and consulting services to local government since 1993,

UHY Haines Norton 15 an association of independent firms m Australia and New Zealand It is
stuctured to share expenence and resources for the benefit of our chients.

The member firms have operated for many decades and enjoy a contimuty of staff and partners. The
ANZ association 15 the Australian member of the infernational accounting network UHY International
with 246 offices in 84 countnes.

The Perth firm curently compnses 6 Partners and 40 staff.

The partners and staff combine expenence gained m Australia and overseas both withm the firm and
from employment with major intermational accounting firms, Char phalosophy 15 to provide informed
professional advice and practical services and provide direct contact betwean the most senior members of
our firm with the management groups of owr clients.

A=z 3 consequence, we are able to offer semices m the followmg specialist areas across the complete
range of ndustry sectors:

- External and Internal Andits

- Accounting Advice and Assistance

- IT Sclutions

- Accounting Advice and Assistance

- Income Tax Preparation and Planning Advice
- Tax Consulting — Busmess Advice

- G5T and FBT advice

- Systems Feview and Implementation

-  Stategic Planning

- Suecession Planming

- Budgeting and Cash Flow Analysis

- Management Consulting

- Financial Management and Orgamsational Plarming

UHY Haimnes MNorton, Perth, a Perth based partnership (“the Fom™), cames on business separately and
independently from other UHY Hames Norton member fims around Austraba and New Zealand and
UHY member firms worldwide.

UHY Hames Norton 15 2 member of Urbach Hacker Young Infernational Limited, a UK company, and
forms part of the internzfional UHY network of legally independent accounting and consulting firms.
UHY 15 the brand name for the UHY international network. The services desenbed herein are provided
by the Fom and not by UHY or any other member firm of UHY . Neither UHY nor any member of UHY
has any hability for service provided by other members.

LUHY Haines Norton Paga 1
Chartered Accountants
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPERIENCE

The fim is the largest anditor of local government in the State and for the vear ended 30 Tune 2011 we
were the mewmbent auditors of the following fifty exght (58) local governments and regional councils:

Shire of Augusta-Margaret Eiver Shire of Moora

Shre of Boddington Shire of Morawa

Shre of Bndgetown-Greenbushes Shire of Mt Marshall

Shure of Brookton Shire of Mullewa

Shire of Broome Shire of Muray

Share of Cammarvon Shire of Mortham

Shre of Chapman Valley Shire of Northampton

Shre of Chittering Shire of Peppermint Grove

Shire of Christmas Island Shire of Perenjori

Town of Claremont Pilbara Regional Council

Shre of Cocos (Keeling) Islands Town of Port Hedland

Shre of Coolgardie Shire of Cuairading

Shre of Cocrow Shire of Ravensthorpe

Shire of Comigin City of Rockingham

Town of Cottesloe Shire of Sandstone

Shire of Derby-West Eimberley Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale
Shwre of Dundas Shire of Shark Bay

Shwe of Ezperance Southern Metropohtan Regional Council
Shire of Gingin City of Sublaco

Shwe of Gonowangerup Shire of Three Springs

City of Gosnells Shire of Toodyay

Shre of Halls Creek Shire of Traymng

Share of Iranin Shire of Victoria Plains

City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder Shire of Westonia

Shire of Eellerbermn Shire of Wongan-Ballidu

Shire of Lake Grace Shire of Wyndham-East Enmberley
Share of Memedin Shire of Wyalkatchem

Midwest Eegonal Council Yamz Yarz Catchment Eegional Couneil
Shire of Mingenew Shire of Yilgamn

In the course of the past yvears we have also provided detailed Financial Management Feview services to
the majonfy of cw audit chients and other local governments. These have meluded the Cities of
Gosnells, Melalle and Joondalup and the Towns of Bassendean and Vincent in the metropolitan area.

Orver the past sixteen vears, we have also conducted an annual workshop which m 2011 was attended by
over one hundred (100} local governments from all over Western Austraha. These workshops have
addressed the Annual Financial Report, Budget, accounting standards, Infrastructure Assets, cashflow
statements, ratio analysis, sustamability and vanous other topical accounting issues.

We have developed a model finanmal report and model budget which address all relevant disclosure
requirements and attempt to establish a consistent puideline for local governments to follow. This report
15 updated anmally as disclosure requirements are amended. In 2011, the model was purchased by mm
excess of one hundred and twenty (120} authorthes statewide.

We also developed a strategy to assist local government with the implementation of GST. The firm has a
dedicated tax task force to assist Councils in the complex areas of G5T and FBT should they require and
we have recently been appointed as the confract provider for WALGA's tax service.

LUHY Haines Novion Page 2
Chartered Aecountants
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5

LOCAL GOVERENMENT EXPERIENCE (continued)

Since Movember 1999, we have provided a remote accounfing service to the Shires of Eoorda and
Leonora and m 2002 added the Shue of Menmes. In 2004/05 we added the Shies of Beverley and
Murchisen and more recently, the Shires of Laverton and Yalgoo. This service includes the provision of
a full general ledger, monthly and quarterly accounts, prineipal actnity plan, budget, anmmals and general
accounting assistance. The sernvice has also developed its own suite of soffware and this 15 cuwrently used
by a number of other mumicipaliftes. This software contains a unique rating package we have developed
on our own mitiative and are presently i development of a new online peneral ladger to complement our
cwrent offermg.

In additon to audit and accounting services, we have also provided extensive assistance to local
government m the following areas dunng the past ten years.

*  Financizl Management Keviews GST & FBT Advice

*  Fmancizl Report preparation *  Statutory Compliance Aundits
*  Infrashucture Assets *  Stategic Plans

* A4S 27 pmplementation ¢  Prmneipal Actrvity Plan

¢  Budget Conversion and assistance ¢ Business Plans

As an added senvice, we also produce and distribute newsletters and accounting updates which address

topical 155ues.

We are a subscriber member of Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) and an active
participant in Institute events. We have been a principal sponsor of LGMA since the begmning of 2003
having previcusly been a major sponsor of the annual conference since 2000 as well a5 2 major sponsor

of other repional conferences and sporting events.

UHY Haines Norton Page 3
Chartered Aecountants
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1.  OTHEE AUDIT EXPERIENCE
In addifion to our local government audits other sigmficant audit engagements melude:

Listed Futities

ASX Listed

- Aens Emvironmental Linuted (EQCE Duties)
- Nanosonics Limated (EQCE. Duties)

- Pro-Pac Packaging Limited (EQCE Duties)

NVSE Listed
- Alloy Steel Internafional Ine.

ATAI Listed
- Herencia Resources Ple

Public Entities

- Cambndge Gulf Ltd

- Ord Imgation Asset Mutual Co-operative Ltd
- Ord Imgation Co-operative Lid

- Ord Raver Distiet Co-operative Litd

- South Seas Abalone Ltd

- Stochastic Simmlation Lid

Foreizn Owned Entities

- Champion Technologies Pty Ltd

- Link Project Services Pty Ltd

- Chation SpectrumDiata Pty Ltd

- Fimex Wheel Pry Ltd

- Spectrum ASE Pty Litd

- Suraval Craft Inspectorate Australia Pty Ltd

Sizuificant Private Entities

- AD. Coote & Company {Sheetmetal) Pty Lid
- Aegiz Aged Care Group

- Flinders Fmancial Services Py Ltd

Sizmificant Not for Profit Organizations

- Ardyaloon Incorporated

- Broome Abonginal Media Association

- Eimberley Land Council

- Living Stone Foundation Inc. (Lifeline)

- Mialhya Rumumra Abongmal Corpration

- Ngarluma & Yindjibamd: Foundation Ltd

- Western Austrahian Sporting Car Club Ine.

- Yawurmu MNative Title Holders Indigencous Land Corporation

Cur base of awdit clents and owr expenence n commercial enterprises gives us exposure to
contemporary approaches in:

- Management;

- Datza collection:

- Receivables and collection systems;

- Infrastructure asset recording and management; and
- Labour force management.

We offer the benefit of this exposure i our audit of systems and policies and deliver these benefits as
part of our core service.
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4. AUDIT SCOPEAPPROACH

The audit of the Town will be camed out m accordance with Australian Audiing Standards, Auditmg
Gudance Statements, the Local Government Act 1995 (“the Act™) and accompanying Regulafions.
Procedure: are designed to ensure the requirements of your Specification and the Alinimum
Standard Audit Specification az per the Department of Local Government and Regional
Development's Operational Guideline Number 9 are met. These include the critical andit areas as

fallows:
*  FReverme * Fmancial Statements
*  Fxpenditue * Sttement of Cash Flows
¢ Cument Assets *  Statutory Oblizations
¢ Imvestments ¢ Accountng Policies and MNotes to the Financial Statements
*  MNon Current Assets * Budget compliance with respect to tinune, format and the
*  Liabilites previous vear's final audited postion
*  FReserve Funds * Fmancial rafios required by the Finaneial Management
*  Contingent AssetsTizhilities Fegulations
¢ Capital Commutments ¢ 5T FBT Conpliance
*  (Govemnance and Control

As part of these procedures we will undertake testing to:

1. Assistus in forming an opinion as to whether:
(a) the accounting recceds are rehiable and adequate as a basis for the preparation of the financial
statements:
(b} the accounts are properly kept;
() the anmual financial report:
(1) 15 prepared in accordance with the financial records; and
(1) represents fauly the results of the operations of the local government and the financial
position of the local government at 30 June in accordance with:
- Australian Accounting Standards
- the Local Govermment Act 1095 (as amended)
- the Local Government (Financial Management} Regulations 19946 (as amended); and
- other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
(d) there are any matenial matters indicating a sigmficant adverse trend in the financial posibon or
the financial management practices of the Town; and
(g) there are any matters mdicating non-compliance with Part 6 of the Local Government Act
1985 (as amended), the Local Government (Finaneial Management) Begulations 1996 (as
amended) or applicable financial controls of any other written laws.

2 All bank and cash balances will be subject to third party confirmation and tests will be undertaken
to ensure mvestments are made m accordance with legslation.

3. Examine the Town's receipting function and perform detailed testing as considered necessary;

4 Examine money owmg to the Town mncliding testing recoverability, follow up procedures and
compliance with relevant legislation:

5. Feview payment vouchers (including credit card transachons) and ensure appropnate procedures
exist n respect o authorisation and payvment of accounts as well as detailed testing as considered
necessary;

6. Perform a review of confrols surmounding pavrell and staff leave records and perform detailed
testing as deemed necessary;

T Feview of rating records meluding rate imposition. valuations, compliance with legislation and
detailed testng as required;

Feview all bomrowing transactions to ensure they have been conducted m accordance with the Act.
Feview reserve fransactons to ensure compliance with the legislafion;
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4. AUDIT SCOPE/APPROACH (continued)

10. Fewview asset register and perform testing on ownership, additions and depreciation caleulations to
determine accuracy and 1f in accordance wath Town policies;

11. Eewiew all transactions mvohing land and other property to ensure legislative requirements are
complied with and the Town has nght of cccupancy:

12.  Eeview agreements where the Town has leased land to third parfies and help ensure
compliance with relevant legislabon m respect of them;

13.  Eewview of the budget and related processes to ensure comphiance with the Act and accompanying
regulations;

14.  Eeview of all mmutes of Council meetings {(and Committees if applicable) to help defermine items
of audit mterest and comphance with the Act and accompanying regulations.

15. Examune tenders to ensure compliance with the Act and accompanymg regulations;

It should be appreciated the areas detailed above are not exhaustive. Our audit procedures will
examine other areas a: deemed appropriate in order we can form an opinion on the financial
statements of the Town and make comments in regard to the accounting syztems and procedures in
place.

O final visit 15 scheduled to:

- be mumally convenient;

- be within 30 days of being advised the audit statements are available for audit (subject to mutually
convenlent travel arrangements); and

- enable you to meet your deadline (subject to your audit readiness).

Chur exit interview will be performed at the conclusion of our andit field work.

We will also liaise with staff to ensure meetings with Council and'or the audit committes occur as
requred. Based on recent amendments to the Act and Regulafions, this may be by electronic means.

Chur andit fee 15 based on the cwrent above-mentioned scope requirements. In the event of a sigmficant
change 1 the requred scope the audit fee may be re-negohated.

We require the Town to maintain adequate accounting records and prepare the annmal finaneial report in
accordance with apphicable accounting standards.

We will send an andit requirements letter summansing our information requirements for the audit pner
to our final visit

Providing zll necessary information 15 made available to us as requred, we undertake to 1ssue our audit
report and management report by the required deadlme (as determined each vear) and further undertake
to provide such reports to the Council and Mimster as required.
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AUDIT PLAN
As previously discussed it 1s emvisaged our audit will be conducted in two wisits.

"

An interim visit n the March to May peniod of the vear and a final visit once vou are ready for our year
end procedures. The ultmate goal 1= to ensure all procedures are completed by the requured deadline i

any given year.

Oy andit procedures wall also involve a planmng phase which wall be undertaken prior to or at the
commencement of our infenm procedures.

During our mtering visit we will perform the bulk of our systems and compliance testing with a view to
helping you eorect any areas of non-compliance prior to year end.

Chur year end procedures are mamly focused at substantively venfyving year end balances and ensunng
that disclosure requirements are met and the anrmal financial report 15 comrectly stated. They will also
include an update/follow up of systems and compliance 15sues investigated’raised dunng owr mntermm
visit.

Further information with respect to our audit methodology can be found at Appendix 2 of this proposzal.
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6. HOUES

Estimated hours for the audit are as follows:

Imterim Visit

Partnar 5
Manager SuperinsorSenor Intermediate Graduate 42  (predominately on site)
Planning 2
49
Financial Management Review (To Coincide with Interim Visit)
Partner 4
Manager/Superisor 6
SemorTntermediate Graduate 25 (predommately on site)
35
Final Visit
Partner 10
Manager SuperinsorSenor Intermediate Graduate 70 (predominately on site)
Plamming/Secratarial 2
32
Total Hours 166

It should be appreciated our andit team has a wealth of Local Government experience.
This is due largely to the wealth of local governiment experience provided by our service team and
the fact the Engagement Partners are actively involved in the industry and fieldwork.

This experience when coupled with our service level, provides a very efficient and effective audit
Process.
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7.  OURLOCAL GOVEENMENT SERVICE TEAM

Az dizeussed previously, we believe that owr commutment to delrvermg a high quakbty service to the local government
industry is demonstrated by our wealth of experience and long term irvolrement.

Our approach iz to ensure that all work iz conducted by suitably qualified staff with a wealth of local
government experience that cannot be matched by our competitors. We believe that such an approach malkes
for a more efficient andit process and provides the Town with a value for money, value added service,

The key members of our service team are mtroduced as follows:

DAVID TOMAST - PARTNER - AUDIT & ASSURANCE

Danad 15 Chairman of the Perth office as well as the Partner in charge of the Aundit Division
and Chizlity Control Leader. He 15 a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and
has been an auditor m public practice for more than twenty five vears. Dwmg that tme, he
has gathered a broad ange of expenence across all mdustry sectors which included five
vears with a “ig 47 accounting firm and twelve months in the UK. He has spent the last
sixtesn 5 a partner of the firm and 1ts antecedents and has been a remistered comparny auditor
since 1990,

Danid has worked extensively on local government assignments since 1990 and 15 the parmer
responsible for the fim’s audit and local government drasion. He ploneered the fim’s imeolvement mn the provision of
high quality servace to the local government industry in Western Aushalia by ensuming that the finn and s staff stay
abreast of all developments.

He 1= cumently the engagement partner on a sigmficant mumber of the firm’s local government audit and consulting
engagements and was responsible for the development of the fimn's methodology and approach m respect of Fmancial
Management Reviews. He 15 also actvely mmolved m feldwork which allows him to develop a detailed working
knowledge of operations and the industry as a whole.

Dianvid has also faclitated Strategic Plans at two local government authorities and has been mmvolved m mumerous special
investizations and consulting engagements,

He has been a member of the DLGED s Fmancial Reporting Working Party, which, amongst other thing=, was charged
with the review of the Financial Management Fegulahons to enswre consistency with recent changes to Anstralian
Accoumting Standards (AIFESs) and providing guidance on other financial reporting matters.

He 1= at the forefront of the firm’s local government traimng program and has presented all of the firm's workshops during
the past fiffeen vears. He 15 the mmediate past Chanmoan of the UHY Hames Morton MNational Aundit Commttes and 1s
currently Chanman of UHY Infernational's Andit Special Interest Group.

In 2008, David assumed the role as Chairmen of UHY Haines Morton's ANZ associatton and 15 responsible for ensunng the
firm and the assoclation contirmes to grow and keep pace with the ever chanming requirements demanded from professional
accounfing service frms.

INDUSTEY PAPERS PRESENTED:

- Checkang the Pulse — Understanding Audit Reports — Local Government Week — August 2002

- Accounting and Financial Issues m Asset Management — CPA Conference Sydneyv-Apnl 2003

- ED12% — Proposaed Changes to AAS27 — CPA Conference Perth — Felbruary 2004

- IFES and Local Government — CPA Conference Perth — February 2003

- IFES and Aundit Commuttess — Departmental Conference Perth — Apnl 2005

- IFFS — LGMA Finance Professionals Conference Fremantle — February 2006

- Understanding Cash Flow Statements - CPA Week - Movember 2006

- Impact of ATFRS on Non-Current Assets - CPA Week - Movember 2006

- Accounting and Statutory Update - LGMA Fmance Professionals Conference Fremantle - Febmary 2007

- Understanding Andit and Fmnancial Reports - Northern Country Fone WALGA Conference — March 2007

- Understanding Cash Flow Statements - CPA Congress - May 2007

- Status of Local Government Accounting — LGMA Anmual Conference — October 2008

- Andit and Accounting Update - LGMA Finance Professionals Conference Fremantle - February 2009

- Accounting Update — Instrhute of Charfered Accountants Darwin — March 2009

- Audit “Fht List™ and Accounting Standard Update - LGMA Finance Professionals Conference Frementle - Febmary 2010
- Monthly Finaneial Reports — LGMA Finanee Professionals — City of Mehalle — Angnst 2010

- ROMANII - An Aunditors Perspective — IFWEA 2011 Public Works Trammg Week Conference — November 2011

QUAITFTCATIONS

¢ Bachelor of Commerce ¢ Remstered Conpany Auditor

* Chartered Accountant (Fellow) » Femstered Tax Agent
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7.  OURLOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE TEAM - (Continued)

GEREG GODWIN - PARTNER - AUDIT & ASSURANCE

Following his qualification from the University of Witwatersrand, Greg jomed Myers Tennier
& Co, 2 medium sized Chartered Accounting firm in Johannesburg where he worked for 5
vears. Dhunng this ime he passed all requirements and became a Chartered Accountant.

After leaving them, he waorked in commerce before commencing his own practice Godwm &
Co Chartered Accountants, in 1997,

Greg bwlt his own firm info a successful ten person practice before mugrating to Australia mn 2005
to join UHY Haines Norton as an Aundit Manager.

Since joinng us, Greg has been admatted as an Australian Chartered Accountant and has had extensive exposure to
the local government industy m Western Auvstraha. Greg was admitted as a Partner of the firm on 1 July 2007

He 15 curently the engagement Partner for approccimately half of the firm’s local government audit chents and has a
pumber of corporate clients that 2dd to his expenence and skills.

INDUSTEY PAPERS PRESENTED:

- Understanding Cash Flow Statements — CPA Week — Movember 2007
- Understandmg Cash Flow Statements — CPA Week — hMay 2008
- Understanding Cash Flow Statements — CPA Week — Nov 2008
- Understanding Cash Flow Statements — CPA Weak — May 2009
- Understanding Cash Flow Statements — CPA Weak — May 2010

QUALIFICATIONS

#* Bachelor of Commerce and Accounting
* Chartered Accountant (Australia)

* Chartered Accountant (South Afnca)

* Fegistered Company Auditor
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7. OUR LOCAL GOVERNAMENT SERVICE TEAM - (Continued)

WEN-SHIEN CHAI - AUDIT MANAGER - LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES

Chai pmgrated to Australia from Malaysia at the end of 2002 after § vears mn vanous
audit roles and was admatted as an Australian Chartered Accountant m 2003,

Dhnng his time 1n Austrabia, Chai has worked exclusively as an Audit Manager
across 3 wide range of clients and industry groups.

Smee joining UHY Hames Norton in May 2007, Chai has managed a vaned client
base which meludes a sigmficant number of regionally based local govemments.

The wide audit expenience gathered by Chai over the past 14 years adds finther skills and experience to our audit
team.

QUALIFICATIONS

Bachelor of Business

Chartered Accountant

Azsociation of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) UK
Registered Company Auditor

THUSHAFA WIJESIRI - AUDIT MANAGER - LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES

Thushara is a Sn Lankan Chartered Accountant who quahified m April 2002 and mugrated to
Australia in June 2007 after 9 vears of professional expenence. This included 7 vears in the
audit team at Ernst & Toung.

Smee lis amval i Australia, Thushara worked as an Audit Manager for just over 2 years
before joimng UHY Hames Morton m January 2010 as an Audit Manager.

His 12 years of expenence (most of 1t in anudit) both locally and overseas make Thushara a valuable member of our
team.

QUALIFICATIONS

Chartered Accountant (S Lanka)

Bachelor of Busmess Admmistration (Unversity of Colombo — Sn Lanka)
Member of Certified Management Accountants (Sn Lanka)

Associate Member of CPA - Austrahia

HITESH PISAVADIA - AUDIT MANAGER - LOCAL GOVERNAMENT SERVICES
Hitesh helds a Master of Busmess Admimistration (Finance) from the University of Leicester.

He originally hails from Eenva and has over 8 vears audit expenence with mid-fier accounting
firmes and 10 years in semor finance roles m commerce.

His andit, financial and commercial experience makes him a valuzble part of our andit team.

QUALIFICATIONS

* Certified Public Accountant (Kenya);

* Naster of Business Admumstration (Unrversity of Laicester — England);
* Nember of Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya.
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T. OUR LOCAL GOVERNMENT SEREVICE TEAM - (Continued)

GILLES CHAN - AUDIT MANAGER - LOCAL GOVERENMENT SERVICES

Once he qualified. Gilles spent 10 years working for 2™ tier accounting firm in Mauritins where
he worked on a wide range of audit assiznments and was promoted up to the posiion of
Aszistant Manager m 2006

Gilles jomed UHY Haines Norton in May 2007 and 15 the audit manager responsible for a
large number of our Local Government and Corporate audit clients.

(Galles skills and expenence belps him delrver an efficient and effective audit senice.
QUALTFICATIONS

*  Acsociation of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) UK

WASANTHA BANDARA - AUDIT MANAGER - LOCAL GOVERNMENT
SERVICES

Wasantha 15 a 5n Lankan Chartered Accountant who qualified following four years at a big
4 firm in Sn Lanka.

Followng his ime in Sn Lanka, Wasantha transferred to the Eastern Canbbean and
worked as an Assistant Audit Manager for teo vears. He then transferred to Papua Mew
Guinea where he was an Assistant Audit Manager for a further two vears.

Wasantha migrated to Austrahz m December 2010 and joined UHY Hames MNorton as an Andit Supervisor m our audit
drision.

His audit expenence across vanous industres, m various geographical locations over eight years, makes hom a very
valuable addition to our audit team

QUALIFICATIONS

* Chartered Accountant — (S Lanka)

#* Bachelor of Science (Accountaney and Financial Managerment)

#* Member of Certified Practising Accountants — (Papua New Gumea)
*  Assoeiate Mamber of CPA — (Austalia)
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T. OUR LOCAL GOVERNMENT SEEVICE TEAM - (Continued)
PAUL BREMAN - PARTNER - LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES

Paul has been mwolved m the Local Government mdustry for over 25 vears. He has keld posihions
at a variety of local governments m WA ranging from large metropolitan Councils such as the City
of Mehille to small rural local governments such as the Shive of West Arthur. He jomed UHY
Haines Norton in 2007 from his most recent position as Execufive Manager of Corporate Services,
Shure of Esperance.

Paul is a Certified Practising Accountant with an in-depth knowledge of local
government accounting and governance practices. He bnngs to the firm a rare strength of local
government expenence which demonstrates the firm’s long term commitment to the Industry.

Paul 15 an actrve member of the Department’s Financial Management Working Party and has been 2 commutiee
member of the LGMA Fmance Managers Group. His expenence and “hand: on™ knowledze 15 widely recognised m
the Industry. As a practibioner he has been the recipient of numerous financial management awards including the WA
Public Sector CPA of the Year 2001.

Paul was adoutted as a Partner of the firm on 1 July 2009 and has assumed responsibility for our Remote Accounting
Services, IT Soluttons and all consulting enpagements.

QUALIFICATIONS

# Bachelor of Business
* (Certified Practicing Accountant (CFA Austraha)
* Diploma in Local Government (C)
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8. ORGANISATIONAL CHART

UHY Haines Norton - Perth

Mike Bennett
,7 Chief Executive —l
Audit & Local Government Services Business Services, Taxation Services
| and UK Penzions
David Tomasi
Partner
' Partmers (1)
I I Brett Cornwall
Greg Godwin Paul Breman Jame: Tog
Partner Partner
Audit Local Govermment Services
I
| | — |
Hitech Picavadia Wen-Shien Chai {Gilles Chan Thnshara Wijesini Mandy Wynne Baussell Barmes
Manager Managesr Mnager Manzger Mianager Manager | Manazers (3) |
Arconmting Sarvices ‘Consultine Sexvices |
| . — L . | | Seniors (6) |
Wasantha Bandara Angussine Chin Vignesh Ry Andries Becker Debbie White Simon Davis
Manager Sanior Semior Semior Supervisor Buziness Systems |
Amnalvst
| Intermediates (4) |
|
Darrell Wong Eevin Too Paolo Franzoni |
Intermediate Intermediate IT Support | Graduates (2) |
|
Paula Sands Sammtha Tho
Akshay Faja DavidBarz P et
Graduats Graduate B
Support Staf (2) Support Saff (4)
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9, OTHER MATTERS
9.1 Quality Assurance

The furm takes a three tiered approach to quality assurance:

*  Project Specification
*  Staff Selecthon
*  (huzbity Reviews

All review projects are designed and documented before commencement to ensure the
objectives of our client ave specifically addressed and ouwr methodology 1s understood.
The document 15 approved prior to commencement of feld work.

The Partners and semior staff have had extensive expenence m auditing, zained by
employiment in and exposure to large mtermational auditing firmes, both in Australia and
overseas, and are conversant with modem audit technigues and methodology. Partners
and semor staff of the firm have sigmficant experience m the conduct of mmternal and
external audits in commercial and public authonties.

Partmers and staff attend ongomg m-house staff traming, UHY Haines MNorton s national

and infernational conferences and commercially ron seminars.

Field operatives and supervising personnel are selected on the basis of their expenence
in the project subject matter and their abihity to add value to the final project outcome.

The work 15 conducted and documented in accordance with the standards of the Instrtute
of Chartered Accountants. All work completed is progressively reviewed by staff at
different levels to ensure the end product meets our high standards. The engagement
partmer reviews the completed files before final clearance 15 given. Dhaft reports of
finding= and recommendations are discussed with semior management of our chients
before final submission to ensure that findings and reporting context are accurate.

Being a firm of Registered Company Auditors eperating on public interest entities, we
are subject to robust oversight by the Australian Secuntes and Investment Commission
{ASIC) as well as the Public Company Accountng Chversight Board (PCAQOB) the TUS
equivalent regulator.

We have recently undergone a review by both of these regulators and both reviews
retmned satisfactory findings.

These reviews are conducted in three to five year intervals.

The quality review process 15 further enhanced by a peer review conducted by the
Instrate of Chartered Accountants practice reviews program. Chur last practice review
under the program found cur audit files complied with the Inshtuate’s quality
requuremnents.

9.2 Conflict of Interest

The firm 15 not aware of any existng or potential relationship, tansaction or holding
that would compromise its objectivity in the conduct of the services emvisaged m this
contract. Should the possibility of a percerved or actual conflict anse the matter would
be raised with the chamman of the andit commuttes mmmediately and activifies
suspended untl the 1ssue was resolved to the satisfaction of the audit commuttes.
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g, OTHER MATTERS (Continued)

9.3 Address for Service of Notices

UHTY Haines Norton
Chartered Accountants
16 Lakeside Corporate
24 Parkland Foad
Osborne Park WA 6017

PO Box 1707
OS5BORNE PARE DC WA 6916
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AFPENDIX 1

Basis of the Proposal

1. UHY Hames Norton, Perth, a Perth based partnership (“the Fum™), cames on busmess
separately and independently from other UHY Hames Morfon member firms around
Australia and New Zealand and UHY member firms worldwide.

UHY Haines Norton 15 2 member of Urbach Hacker Young Infernational Linited a UK
company, and forms part of the imtermational UHY network of legally independent
accounting and consulting fims. UHY is the brand name for the UHY mtermatonal
network. The services described herem are pronided by the Firm and not by UHY or any
other member firm of UHY. Neither UHY nor any member of UHY has anv habibity for
service provided by other members.

2. Unless otherwise agreed m writing, UHY Hames MNorton's standard terms concerming
billings and fees will apply.

3. The information contamed m this propesal 15 confidential and cannot be corveyed to any
party other than the management and Council of the Town.
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APPENDIX 1
THY Haines Norton Audit Methodolozy
The strength of our firm 1= the active volvement of partners in all assignments. We place particular
emphasis on the provision of personal service to each client and ensming the partner is actively
invelved in the day to day performance of the audit.
The audit team would inchide an audit manager, and other audit and professional staff as required
throughout the assignment. The firm is committed to providing continuity of personnel assigned to
the audit and ensunng these staff are available as required to complete the shuctured audit plan.

We would also enswre a second partner 15 bnefed and 15 fammliar with the conduct of the audit to
provide suitable backup quality assurance processes, and act as a second point of reference to you.

Char andit would be conducted m accordance with Australian Anditing Standards.

1. Ohbjectives of the Andit

The audit would be designed to achieve the following objectrves:

* To enable us to express opimions on whether the financial statement show a tue and fair
view of the results for the vear and the financial affaws at yvear end.

* To ensure the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory
requirements and Australian Accounting Standards.

*  Whether we can be safisfied with implicit management assertions in respect of the
financial statements mn regard to the followmeg:

- Exastence or Qcourrence;

- Completeness;

- Accuracy;

- Valuation or Allocation;

- FRights and Obligations; and
- Disclosure.

*  To review the systems of internal confrols to determine whether they appear adequate to
safeguard the assets and funds of the Town.
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APPENDIX 2 (continued)
THY Haines Norton Audit Methodolozy (continued)
1 Audit Plan

The firm’s andits would be planned to enable us to conduct effective audits in an efficient and
timely manner. Ohr plan would be based on our knowledgze of vour activities and would be
developed and revized as considered necessary durng the cowse of the audit. The emphasis of
our audit would focus on the major risk areas of aundit sigmficance whilst enswing the
organisafion complies with legislative requirements.

Chur audit planning stage covers the following procedures:

*  obtamung knowledge of your cwrent activifies, accountng system, policies and internal
control procedures;

*  obtaining an understanding of the internal control stucture. Evaluasting the cpersfion of
the mternal comfrol sbucture and the rehance we would place on these confrols
determuning the nature, imng and extent of other audit procedures.

* identification of nsk areas and alloczhion of nsk levels for sach area;

*  determuning materiality levels in accordance with Statement of Accounting Standards
AASEH 1031 “Materiality in Financial Statements™;

*  determuning and progranmrmung the nature, iming and extent of the andit procedures to be
performed: and

*  co-ordinating the work to be performed.

3. Scope
Should we be successful m this tender, the scope of the audit would be determuned n

accordance with Aunstralian Audiing Standards, legislative requirements and terms included m
the audit engapement confract based on the contents of this submission

The audit would be arranged to adequately cover all aspects of the Shire relevant to us formung
an opimion on the financial statements.

4.  Timing

We would liaise with management on the andit plans and a tmetable for the preparation of the
financial reports and supporting schedules, allowmg sufficient time for completion of the aundit
within your deadhines.

Our audit feam may alse visit during the year fo cany out systems evaluations and testing to
determne whether the systems can be relied on to produce reliable and acowrate information.
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APPENDIX 2 (continued)
THY Haines Norton Audit Methodolozy (continued)

£ Procedures

Third party confirmations would be obtained to wvenfy all major assets amnd
liabulities.

The financial statements would be analytically reviewed and all mdividual assets,
Liabelifies and profit and loss items within the matenality levels would be audited.

The financial statements would be checked to determine whether they show fairly the
financial trapsactions and state of affairs and comply with legislative requirement=s and
Australian Accounting Standards.

We would review post balance date events, confingent labibfies and capital
commitments.

Consideration would be given to the Town's fuhwe wiability inchiding any significant
adverse trends, the ability to pay its debts as and when they fall due and whether the basis
of preparing the financial statements on the zoing concemn concept 1s relevant.

The Audit Parmer would be accessible at all times to discuss and give advice on matters
related to the preparation of the financial statements and any other topics management
MY require.

. Beporting
*  Alanagement Reports

(2} Any significant and/or unusual developments arismg dunng the cowrse of our
examinzfions would be firstly communicated mmmediately to our primary contact or
an appropriate level of management.

(k) Our managerent repert would detail all 1ssues of major significance observed durmg
the course of the audit. These reports would set out parficulars of:

(1}  matenal errors or breaches of the orgamsation’s policies and procedures;

() mstances where the orgamsation fauls to comply with appropriate legislation;

{m) acts of lack of proprietary or probaty;

() failure to maintain proper accounts and records;

(v)  falure to operate ke controls over 1ts activities;

(v1) matters related to the efficient and effective operations of the crganization noted
during the cowrse of the audit; and

(vi1) other matters as set out in Appendix 1 of vouwr gquotation specification where
thew have not already been addressed above.
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Provision of Audit Sendces

AFPENDIX 2 (continued)
THY Haines Norton Audit Methodology (continued)
6.  Beporting (continued)
All reparts would be diseussed in detail with appropnate officers before bemg released.

(e} All management reports would be addressed to the President (as required by the Act)
and a copy sent to the Chief Executive Officer.

* Independent Audit Reports on Financial Statements

Andit opimons on the financial statemsents would be provided after completion of the
audits e, after the receipts of all confirmatons, letter of representations and the
signng of the financial statements by the Chief Executrve Officer.

The audit opmions would be m the form required by Australian Aunditing Standards
and statutory requirements and include those iems as requred by the Local
Government Act and Local Government (Audit) Regulations.
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ITEM 7

ITEM 8

ITEM 9

9.1

9.2

LATE ITEMS AS PERMITTED BY CHAIRPERSON/COUNCIL

Nil

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

Nil

CLOSURE
Date of Next Meeting

The next Ordinary Meeting of the Audit and Finance Committee will
be held on Wednesday, 30 May 2012.

Closure

There being no further business, the Chairperson declared the
meeting closed at 3:40 pm.
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